

**ROCKINGHAM COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT
HARRISONBURG, VA**

MINUTE

BOOK

15

1834

1
Virginia Wit

At a Court held for the County of Rockingham on the 20th day of
January 1834 Being the 3rd Monday in January 1834

Present

George Clarke, Samuel Cook, Joseph Child &
Jacob Rush

E. L. Foster

A List of Conveyances and other Writings admitted to Record in the
Clerks office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 2nd day of
December 1833 to the 31st day of the same Month both days inclu-
ded was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof and being examined
by the Court is ordered to be entered on the minutes and a list of it
be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County which
list is in the words and figures following to wit

- not found A Deed for Land from George Groves & Wife To Adam Hansler
do A Deed for Land from William Fisher & Wife To Joseph Mawzy
A Deed for Personal Estate from James Wilson To Robert C. Thompson
X son In Trust for William C. Thompson &
found A Deed for Land from Jacob Newman To Archibald S. Rutherford
X A Deed for Personal Estate from David Crickenbarger To John & Ann Crickenbarger
found And agreement for Land Between Benjamin H. Martz & Wm. Pickering
not found A Deed for Land from John Basters & Sons To Samuel & John Clarke
X A Deed for Personal Estate from William Kidwell To Malinda Jacobs
found A Deed for Land from Martin Meller To Michael Ditman
found A Deed for Land from Ephraim Wolf & Wife To Elizabeth Amentraut
not found A Deed for Land from Schue Gums & Wife To Henry Tarflinger
do A Deed for Land from Philip Shoemaker To G. H. Christman In Trust for John Christman
found A Deed for Land from Elizabeth Looker To John Harries
found A Deed for Land from Christian Rohrbaugh & Wife To Peter Keller
not found A Deed for Land from George Long To Maria Stute In Trust for George Earman
X A Deed for Personal Estate from John Kusemader To Henry I
Gambree In Trust for Maria Stute &
found A Deed for Land from Joshua Dougherty To Joseph Dougherty
found A Deed for Land from Levi Hotenpiller To Henry Meyers
not found A Deed for Land from John Smith & Wife To William Buckerton
X A Deed for Personal Estate from James Roadcap To Sittleton W
Gambree In Trust for Abraham Smith &
not found A Deed for Land from Philip Parrot & Wife To Emanuel Hansbarger

On the Motion of Samuel St. Lewis exec of L. Charles Lewis and it is ordered
that Richard P. Settle be appointed a commissioner to examine & settle
the estate accounts of s^r. Charles Lewis and make report to the Court

On the Motion William B. Hany P. admr of Sayler Hany and it is
 ordered that Joseph Maury be appointed a commissioner to examine state
 and settle the state accounts of said Sayler Hany and make report to
 the Court

On the Motion of Archibald Parkey admr of Margaret Parkey and it is
 ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine
 state and settle the state accounts of said Margaret Parkey and make
 report to the Court

On the Motion of Abraham Painter, it is ordered that Richard P.
 Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the
 Guardian accounts of said Painter as Guardian for Polly Herms orphan
 of ~~Abraham~~ ^{John} Herms and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Abraham Painter & Jacob Bear admrs of John Herms
 and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner
 to examine state and settle the state accounts of said John Herms and
 make report to the Court

of a born Low Child of
 Admin of the poor apt. John Low on recogn. of the father of Robert
 Dumas, the said Defendant appears in Court and agrees confessed that he
 was the father of the said Barbara Child, and agrees to enter into a
 Recognizance, to pay to the said Admin of the poor and their successors
 in office the sum of \$140. in the following manner that is to say
 \$20. on demand, and then \$20 annually from the date thereof until
 the said sum be paid, or otherwise exonerating the parents from the
 support of the said Barbara Child (who is likely to become chargeable
 to the said parents) whereupon the said John Low with John Stankin his
 security appears in Court and severally acknowledged themselves to owe
 and be indebted to his ~~underlying~~ Excellency John Floyd Governor of Virginia
 and his successors in office in the said sum of \$140. to be paid of
 their respective goods and Chattle Larnas and tenements and for the use of
 the Admin of the poor to be rendered. Yet upon this condition that the
 said John Low and John Stankin shall well and truly pay to the
 Admin of the poor for this county and their successors or their agents

Recd 36.
 f. 18
 Co 20
 54 18
 22 40
 132

\$20/100

the said sum of \$140. in the manner, and at the several terms ³
mentioned in the above order, then this recognizance to be void else to
remain in full force, and that the debt pay the costs.

Alfred perjury to be the last will and testament of John Tulew
and was presented in court and proved by the oaths of the witnesses thereto
and orders to be Recorded, and on the Motion of Leonard Tulew (son of
said John) one of the executors named in the said Will (the other executor named
in said will having appeared in court and refused to act) who entered into
bond with security in the penalty of \$8,000, and made oath thereto
as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining probate thereof
in any form, and to 4 orators that Solomon St. Affers, Henry
Staley, Martin Stair, and George Whitely, or any three of them being
first sworn as appraisers the estate of the said John Tulew, and make
report thereof to the Court

A settlement of the estate of Henry Belkner as Guardian of his son Joseph
Belkner in an return and examined by the Court and orders to be Recorded

On the Motion of Jacob Shaler and for Reasons appearing to the Court it
is ordered that the indenture bearing Walter Jones to said Shaler be
set aside, revoked, and it is ordered that the Orphans of the poor be
said Walter Jones to Jonathan Muttu to learn the art of a farmer
as the law directs, who is to receive for freedom dues 20 Dollars

An appraisment bill of the estate of Jacob Spauld and was returned &
orders to be Recorded

On the Motion Richard Boozford he having made and filed a written
declaration for a Pardon on the act of Congress passed the 17th of
June 1832, and the said Declaration being made and certified in the
manner directed by the said act of Congress. The same is ordered to be
certified, by the Clerk hereof, to the War department as directed by law

Ordered that Albert S. Gambell, Jacob A. Stetwell and Philip Leggett
be appointed commissioners to value the and examine William Gray
a Negro. Confined in the Jail of the County, and make report to the
Court of the Value of said Negro.

Copy and sent to Annotator by mail 22nd May 1834.

24

Reaching Harrison, Nicholas P. Fletcher & George Clarke of the justice of the peace for this County, returned into Court, an examination made by them, of Rebecca Berry a insane person, Certifying that they had examined her in the manner directed by Law, and found her to be a person of unsound mind, and that they had by warrant, ^{on the 19. December 1833} committed her to the jail of this County, it appearing to them from evidence and that no person was appointed a committee for ^{for} Berry that the Hospital at Staunton was full, all which is ordered to be Certified to the annals of public accounts as the Law directs.

On the motion of the coroner of Samuel Roberson decd. it is ordered that Jacob Lennick, James Dear and Abraham Peary ~~be~~ ^{be} sworn as appraisers the estate of the said Samuel Roberson decd & make report to the Court.

It is ordered that the Coroner of the poor ward Staslee at Backing a free boy of colour (aged about 10 years, at this term) to Francis Dena to learn the art of a farmer, as the Law directs, who is to receive for freedom sum 20 Dollars.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Margart Sipe decd. was produced in Court, and proved by the oath of Christopher Mettel a witness thereto & ordered to lay until the next Court.

See Report made at City Court 1834. and file with annals of Berry & Co.

It is ordered that John F. Effinger and George Clarke be appointed Commissioners to examine into the state and condition of Rebecca Berry administratrix now confined in the jail of this County, who are hereby directed to report to the Court, the result of such examination in the manner directed by Law.

David Mathews by a commission from the Governor is continued in the office of Sheriff of this County for the ensuing year, who thereupon with security entered into three several bonds in the sum of \$30,000 each as conditions as the Law directs, which bonds were severally acknowledged by the parties thereto, and ordered to be Recorded, the Court being satisfied with the said security.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Elizabeth Delmonad died, was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of the witnesses thereto to be and to be Recorded.

84
85
150.
159.
1860
20
18-
18-
40
174

Interests & Rife upon are attached.
The sheriff having return on the attached executed on Capps & Co and the said Defendant not appearing to reply the same, altho solemnly call. In August is awarded the Plaintiff for \$240. with interest thereon from the 1st day of November 1832 till paid and is Costs by him about his attachment and it is ordered that the sheriff make sale of the said attached property according to law, and return an account thereof to the Court. but the said sale of the said property is to be made subject to the Lien which John Cooper and Joseph Collins hold on the said property.

On the Motion of George Peterson executed under the Will of Elizabeth Delmonad died, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$800. and made oaths thereto as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form, and it is ordered that Daniel Winsor, Peter Rowthrop, John Allbright and Elias Duncan or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of the said Elizabeth Delmonad and and make report thereof to the Court.

On the Motion of James Duff and for reasons appearing to the Court it is ordered, that he be exempted from the payment of County Officers fees for his two slaves Thomas & Clara on account of old age & infirmities.

For reasons appearing to the Court. It is ordered that Henry J. Gambell do and he is hereby appointed a Commissioner to contract with some proper and fit person on the best terms that he can, to have a new roof put on the School of this County, and that he pay the expense thereof out of any moneys in his hands due the County, and return an account of the same to the Court.

Philip Leggett, Abner S. Gambell and Jacob B. Mitchell who were this day appointed Commissioners to Value a Negro slave named John Gray (now confined in the Jail of this County as a runaway) made report by which it appears that they Value the said Negro at \$1000. to be worth.

the sum of \$400. and the Court being of the opinion that the said Agent will bring his fact fees and other expenses at the expiration of 12 months. that fact is ordered to be entered of Record.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until the third Monday in February next

Joseph Blinn

Virginia Court

At a Court held for the County of Rockingham on the 17th day of February 1834 Being the 3rd Monday in February 1834

Present

Stephen Humberger, Saml H. Lewis, Robert G. Galt, & Joseph Blinn
S. H. Justice

A List of Conveyances and other Writings admitted to Record in the Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 3rd day of January 1834 To the 30th day of the same Month both days. Included was returned into Court by the Clerk there of and being examined by the Court is ordered to be entered on the Minutes and a like list to be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County which list is the words and figures following to wit:

not counted A Deed for Land to Thomas Walleand Starkley To George Clarke In Trust for Archibald S. Rutherford

counted A Deed for Land from Havel Rogers & Wife To George Meller
not counted A Deed for Land from George Clarke & Wife To Solomon M. Hunter
not counted A Deed for Land from Solomon M. Hunter & Wife To John F. Effinger
A Deed for Land from Henry Lane & Wife To George Martz
In Trust for Peter Koontz

A Deed for Land from Richard Thomas & Wife To Marcus Thomas

A Deed for Land from Jacob Meller & Wife To John Meller

A Deed for Land from John Koontz Esq. To Peter Truck

A Deed for Land from Benjamin Smith & Wife To James Gains

A Deed for Land from the Same To James Bridges

not counted A Deed for Land from George Burnside & Wife To John Stevens

A Deed for Land from John Stevens & Wife To Archibald Brock

found A Deed for Land From Conrad Rodchaffer To George Rodchaffer
 do A Deed for Land From John Conrad To Jacob Runkle
 do A Deed for Land From Jacob Runkle Wife To John Conrad
 found A Deed for Land From Adam Painter To George Arrey
 not found A Deed for Land From Henry Gilmore Wife To Peter Runkle
 do A Deed for Personal Estate From Jacob Shaver To S. H. Hoffman
 + In Trust for Frederick Gliese &
 not found A Deed for Land From George Long Wife To Joseph Billheimer
 do A Deed for Land From Peter Keller Wife To Daniel Wheeler
 do A Deed for Land From Solomon Corl To Michael Corl
 + In Trust for Anthony Sprinkle

New appraisal bill - and sale bill of the estate of John Seltan are now
 returned & examined by the Court & ready to be recorded

George W. Piper, foreman, William Farnum, John Shatt, George Rose,
 Absalom Wright, Mervell Rogers, Peter Good, John Blair, William Robertson, Samuel
 Mahony, Jacob Bower, John Perry, Jacob Flora, Pleasant Clarke, Gabriel
 Gilman, Christopher Whetzel, John Argubright and Peter Moyers.

were sworn a Grand jury for this County, who received their charges and retired
 from the bar to consider of their presentments, and after some time returned into
 Court and ~~was~~ ^{was} ~~forthwith~~ ^{forthwith} and declared that they had nothing to
 present, ~~and were discharged~~ ^{were discharged}

Daniel Mathews, who, by appointment from the Governor is entered in the
 office of Sheriff of this County for the ensuing year, appears in Court, and
 took the several oaths of office as the Law directs, which is ordered to be
 Certified (he having entered into bond with security in the manner directed by
 Law at the last Court)

On the Motion of Daniel Mathews Sheriff of the County, George H. Chapman,
 Eawara H. Smith, John H. Hopkins, William Leavens and Peter Smith
 were admitted his Deputies, who thereupon took the several oaths ^{honourably} prescribed
 by Law, the Court being of the opinion that they are all men of ^{honesty} ~~probity~~
 and good demeanor, all which is ordered to be Certified

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Margaret Bowyer decd. was presented in Court, and proved by the oaths of Thomas C deans for and Assessors, Gauthier & Wilmings, Jurats, before to be Recor'd and on the Motion of Samuel St. Lewis the executor named in the said Will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$4000. and made oath thereto, as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining approbation thereof in due form, and it is ordered that George M. Knapen, Thomas Holt, Jonathan Smith, and James M. Blount or any 3 of them being first sworn to appraise the estate of the said Margaret Bowyer and make report

William, and Joel Sellar, orphans of Joseph Sellar decd. now 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of Henry Connor as ^{the said Henry Connor by appointing Guardian for} their Guardian, and it is ordered that ~~Adelerson~~ and Mary Ann Sellar, Chelars of said Joseph Sellar decd. who are under 14 years of age the said Henry Connor having entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$300 as the Law directs

On the Motion of Jacob Neely, an injunction is granted him, to stay all further proceeding, on a Judgment recovered in this Court, against him by Daniel Lagman, until the further order of the Court, but the effects of this injunction is to be suspended until the said Jacob Neely, enters into bond with security in a penalty, of at least equal to double the amount of said Judgment, and moreover files a decree of all errors at Law in said Judgment, which bond is to given in the Clerk's office

A Settlement of the estate accounts of Christian Hyger Jr decd. was presented in Court, and was examined, and ordered to be Recor'd

Margaret Detenow orphan of Henry Detenow decd. now 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of Samuel Shuts as her Guardian who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$500 - Conditions as the Law directs

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Bathshew Gordon, decd. was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of Elizabeth Starring and Rebecca Davis two Wilmings Jurats & Orans to be Recor'd, and on the Motion of John Gordon one of the executors named in the said Will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$10,000. and made oath thereto, as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining approbation thereof in due form, - and it is ordered to

to certify that Walter Davis the other executor named in said will appears in Court and renounces his right to act as an executor and it is ordered that John Bourne, Saml Bourne, M. M. King, Jeff and John M. Dealton, or any 3 of them being first sworn, do appraise the estate of said Catherine Gordon and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of Jacob P. Sheffer, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$3,000 and made oath thereto as the Law directs a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Jacob Paul deceased in due form, (Elizabeth Paul the Widow having given under her hand and seal her right of administration) and it is ordered that Pleasant A. Blake, John Gault, Cyrus Tully and Edward Stevens, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Jacob Paul and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of John & Jacob Pennewick, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$3,000, and made oath thereto as the Law directs a certificate is granted them for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of ~~Thomas~~ John Parra (read) in due form, and it is ordered that Jacob Pinsky, John Mohler, Jacob Kettinger Jr and John Mount or any three of them being first sworn, do appraise the estate of the said John Pennewick and make report thereto to the Court.

On the Motion of Jacob Runkle, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$300, and made oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining ~~approval~~ ~~letters~~ letters of administration on the estate of ~~Thomas~~ Margaret Runkle dec. in due form, and it is ordered that Tobias D. McGahy, John Connor, James F. Graves, and John Cook or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Margaret Runkle and make report to the Court.

An appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Laylor Gary dec. was returned into Court, and ordered to be Read.

A writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of William Robertson Jr dec. was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of John M. Campbell and James Blair, two Witnesses thereto ordered to be Read, and on the Motion John Robertson one of the executors therein named, in the said will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$3,000, and made oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining approval in due form, and leave is given to William

Now the other executor names in the said will to form an ad hoc probate at a future day) and it is ordered that John Blain, Reuben Gains, Christian Goffman and John Funtchour, or any 2 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said William Roberson and make report to the Court.

A sale bill of the estate of John Seveler (an insane person) was returned into Court, by Jacob Seveler his Committee and ordered to be Read.

A settlement of the estate of John Seveler, was returned into Court and ordered and ordered to be Recorded.

An appraisal bill of the estate of Samuel Roberson dec^d was returned into Court and ordered to be Recorded.

A Declaration of Laurann Howardsell a Revolutionary Soldier for a Pension under the Act of Congress passed the 7th June 1832, and the said declaration being in the form prescribed by the said Act, and the Court being satisfied with the proofs thereof, it is ordered that the Clerk Certify the said declaration to the War Department in the manner and form, directed by the said Act.

On the motion of Joshua Dougherty, and satisfactory evidence was adduced in Court, to prove that said Joshua Dougherty is the only son and the only heir at law in fee to Elizabeth Dougherty late a private in the 12th Regiment of U. S. Infantry, ~~whereby~~ it is ordered to be Certified to the War Department.

Byrdy and Hinton R on a Note on Duly sworn Note given, and created awarded on said bond against all the defendants, except Moses Hinton.

Whitely & Linnard R on a Note on a Duly sworn Note given R created awarded

Sp Lamm & Mely R

R Christian & Christian R

R Goffman Hooper & Lowman R

R Pedersen (for Robert Wy) & Spitzer R

R Smith & Mely R

R Berr & Clark R

saw (the Judge)

saw

saw

saw

saw

saw

Harry Penna widow of John Penn (decd) from among her lands & estate (which was present in Court) relinquishes her right of administration on her husband's estate

By Court & Derrow and Bair, abate as to Derrow by return, and Inquest
 9. certified by Bair for the Debt in the declaration mentioned with interest and costs.

On the Motion of John Seay to ~~abate~~ ^{hear his house} alter the public road leading from Harrisburg to New Market, which alteration is to begin about 8 or 9 poles on the south side of his pump, and to intersect the said public road about 10 poles on the north east of his pump, - it is ordered that David Lincoln, Peter Neff, Saml Harrison and James Armstrong or any 3 of them being first sworn, do ~~appear~~ ^{show} the said alteration and make report ~~of~~ of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same to the Court

On the Motion of John Argubright, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the accounts of said John Argubright as Guardian of William ^{Esplan} ~~Hobbs~~ and make report to the Court

On the Motion of John Glenn, it is ordered that William L. Thompson be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said John Glenn as administrator with the will annexed of John Hoover decd and make report to the Court

On the Petition of Joshua Jennings to alter the public road leading from the Harpsburg Road to the Medical Spring at the foot of the Mountain, which alteration is to begin ^{at} ~~begin~~ and the present road at the Corner of your Petitioner's land also John's Looker Corner, and to continue ^{at} ~~at~~ it on the said division line ~~between~~ ^{between} of your Petitioner and said Looker until it strikes the division line between your Petitioner and Reuben Harrison thence with said division line until it intersects the present road the proposed new road will at no point be more than three poles from the present road the whole distance about 350 yds. - it is ordered that George Roads, Peter P. Mooney, and David Sipe - ~~arrange themselves~~ ^{being} first sworn, do ~~show~~ ^{show} the said alteration, and make report of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same to the Court.

On the motion of Edward Smith, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle his accounts as Guardian of Mary Duffman formerly Mary Wren and make report thereof to the Court.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow morning at 10 o'clock.

Stephen Harnsberger

Tuesday the 16th February 1834

Present

Stephen Harnsberger, David H. Lewis, Samuel Cook and Isaac Thomas. E. J. Fuller

A sale bill of the estate of ^{Catharine Dunlap} ~~Henry Dunlap~~ was returned & ordered to be read.

A settlement of the estate John Bigely decd. was returned & examined by the Court and ordered to be read.

A settlement of the estate accounts of Nathaniel Mathis decd. was returned, and for reasons appearing to the Court ordered to lay over until the next Court.

Moore Guardian of Rachel & people of colour, for reasons appearing Court. Saml Coffman is hereby appointed Guardian for the infant defendants Catharine & Adeline (also children of colour) to defend the suit for them.

A Register of Abraham Jackson's (free Negro) made by the Clerk is presented in Court, and being compared with the said Abraham and found duly made, a copy thereof is ordered to be furnished said Abraham as the Law directs.

Court & Lucy a free Negro, abated by the Defendants death.

Court & Chatterbox's plea was & except Confess for costs.

Court & Barly Not Guilty & Plea is continued.

Overris Poor & Nostray disimp. at the Defendants costs.

Meller & B. Meller on a Motion Controversy Court.

Geo. Meller & Lewis on rule contro.

- (Long P. & Smith on rule continue
 (Dever P. & Newman P. on rule continue
 (Herring Jr & Hull P. on rule continue
 (Shanandoah Company & Harper on rule continue
 (Hale & W. M. Means continue award
 (Early Jr P. & W. M. Mahan continue for Defendant
 (Young P. & P. & P. continue by court
 (Rutherford & son & Weston continue
 (Barlow Jr P. & Refs P. continue
 (same Jr P. & same continue
 (Newman & West continue by court
 (Jeffs & son & Linn & son plea up & Disput Confess for \$50 with
 (Interest from 15 Feb 1834 till paid & Costs
 (Painter & Miller continue by court
 (Rutherford & son & Carthage continue by court
 (same & D. & D. same
 (Showalter Defant & Beggers. By consent of parties by their attorneys all
 matters in difference between them in this suit is referred to the award and
 final determination of Pleasant A. Clark and Oscar Leavenworth where award
 of the award of this referee in case of disagreement is to be made the
 Disput of the Court
 (Hays & son & W. M. Mahan continue
 (Peckham & O. Root continue
 (Miller & A. Miller continue by court
 (Gilman & H. Gilman continue by court
 (A settlement of the accounts of Edward H. Smith as Guardian of Mary
 (Wiro, was return and examd by the Court ordered to be Record
 (Stark Jr P. & son plea up & Disput Confess for the Debt in the declaration
 (mentioned, with interest & Costs (saving equity)
 (Haight & Ogden did agree Costs too

Bowman & Meeker Jury sworn to assess of the Damages in the case, to wit, Alexander Smith, Sartin Rain, Emanuel Hamberger, John Hagar, James Duff, William Reckard, Thomas Logan, Samuel Hoot, Jackson Vanfelt, Robert Jones, Philip Leggett & John Tharner. Verdict for the Deft for the sum of \$27.78 cents Damages with interest from 15 July 1820 till Paid Costs

George Clarke and John F. Coffinger, who was appointed at the last Court to examine into the conduct of Rebecca Perry a Servant now confined in the Jail of this County, made a report by which it appears that the said Perry is an ~~imbecile~~ person of unsound mind, and requires the clothing and support & whereupon it is ordered that Peter Rich Jailor do so and he is hereby certified to furnish her with such clothing as she shall require, provided that the expenses thereof shall not exceed \$20 per year, and 25 cents per day, all which is ordered to be Certified

See the report filed among the papers of the Jailor

On the Motion of Jacob Newman, who enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$5000. and makes oath thereto, as the Law directs, a Certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Henry Darling deceased in due form, (which of course made out in conformity with the act for the relief of the said state)

On the Motion of Jacob Hamberger executor of Jasper Mayell dec'd it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Mayell dec'd and make report thereof to the Court

It is ordered that the Governor of the poor send Philip Winterges about 19 years of age to William Reckard to learn the trade of a black Smith as the Law directs, who is to receive for freedom dues \$20

Shaffer & Gross M & C et. al. vs. St. A. pleaded & gave Jury sworn to try the issue, to wit, Alexander Smith, Sartin Rain, John Hagar, James Duff, William Reckard, Thomas Logan, Samuel Hoot, Jackson Vanfelt, Robert Jones, Philip Leggett, Jacob Roads, & David Flood. Verdict for the Deft for \$30 Damages with interest from 10th day of October 1829. till paid & Satisfied. New Deal Refers in application of the Deft.

Thompson Hb & Mitchell office Su agent set are do. pay int. please Genl replacator	
Spur. and Contins	
Bowman (for Ruffey & Co) & Rantzen	same
Alldough & McMillen	same
Rantzen & P. Fisher & Co	same
Steven & Pounts & Chino	same
Steeple & Ferry	same
same & Burroughs	same
same & Schaefer	same
Donagh & Livingston	same
Daniels & Logan Jr	same
Dorson (for J. A. Allen) & F. Dorson	same
Mitchell & F. Dorson	same
E. Reed & Robertson	same
Stirling & Ferry	same
Mr. Rice & Merritt	same
same & J. Looker	same
same & Berryman & Co	same
Smith & Knight	same
same & Logan Jr	same
Gelman & Joseph & Co	same
Miller & Rantzen	same
Williamson & Ferry	same
Smith & Co & Byerly (alt by)	same
Christian Hb & High	same
same & Harrison	same
Taylor (for Mr. Rice) & Byerly. dis upo apes	
Thompson for P & Palmer dis upo apes (Contins 74 cuts my for paid)	

On who attests

- For reason appearing to the Court, it is ordered that Daniel Mathew Sheriff of this County, take into his hands and possession the estate of Antonio Baccios deceased, and administer the same according to law.

Ordered on Motion, Jury sworn to by the Jury to wit: David Warner, Robert Reed, William Devo, Adam Long, James Payne, James Deak, James Kyle, Edward Burryden, Joseph Kelly, Arch. S. Rutherford, Jas. Bryan & William Payne, and having heard the evidence were adjourned until to Morrow Morning at 10 o'clock

- Ordered that the Oversee of the poor send Francis Jane Sumner, one & 1/2 year old the 11th day of January 1833. to Joseph Argulright, as the Law directs, who is to receive for freedom dues \$20.

- Ordered that the Oversee of the poor send Mercedeth Chifton to John Huff, (about 17 years of age) to learn the Trade of a Cabinet & Maker, as the Law directs, who is to have for freedom dues \$20.

- Ordered that the Oversee of the poor send Christian Titler, (who is about 16 years of age) to Jonathan Bateman to learn the Trade of a ~~Chair Maker~~ of a Chair Maker and Wheelright, as the Law directs, who is to have for freedom dues \$20.

- On the Motion of Jacob Burckholder, it is ordered that George Clark be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Jacob Burckholder as administrator of Peter Bowman for deceased and make report to the Court.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow Morning at 10 o'clock

J. M. Lewis

Wednesday the 19th February 1834.

17

Pursuant

Samuel H. Lewis, Richard P. Fletcher, Samuel
Book & Isaac Thomas S. G. Justice

Paul is returned as imp by order of the Defts attorney

Paul is Jacob Deibel, the Plaintiff being dead, it is ordered that, a scire facis be awarded against the said Defendant in the name of Jacob P. Slupen action of said Jacob Paul to show cause why the said suit shall not stand and be proceeded to final Judgment in the name of said Adam. Returnable here at the next term

Sanahan (for Slupen) is returned, offer Judgment set aside & payment placed. Gavel
Replication & offer are continued

Graham Adam (for Mrs. M. Lewis) & Charles P. pleads and Judgment confessed for the Debt in the declaration mentions with interest & costs (saying jointly)

Something cross to Robert Lewis &

said "said" to the same to the { In Debt

By consent of the parties, there is an all matters in difference between them in these suits is referred to the award and final determination of Richard P. Fletcher and Allen L. Byars, whose award or the award of their umpire in case of disagreement is to be made the Judgment of the Court

Ordered that Henry J. Gambell be attorney agent for the County, paid with John Henry to the Commission appointed to superintend the building the new Court house, the sum of \$125. that being the price agreed to be paid by them for the rent of the house, used as a Court house of for the County, out of any moneys in his hands due the County.

do up. ~~James~~ Edward & Joseph P. upon an attachment, dismissed by order of the Plaintiff attorney, and Judgment for Defendants Costs

Sayman & Neely on the Motion of the Defendants by their Counsel and for appearance to the Court
Reason, that for said reasons on the Delivery now in this case, it is ordered to be set aside

Edwin P. & Thomas the jury impaneled and sworn for the trial of the cause on yesterday, appears in Court agreeably to their adjournment. Verdict for the Defendants & Judgment accordingly

May & Melch. Jury sworn to try the case to wit
 John Rogers Benjamin Smith Larkin Rouns Henry
 Gilmore William B. Keller Joseph Sharp George
 May George W. Hensley Evert Sullivan Henry Barrick
 Carol Berry & Maria Ray, Not set for the Def^t for \$36 Damages.
 & Judgment, thereupon the Plaintiff agrees to release the
 whole of the said Damages except \$7.50 cents which is ordered to be entered of
 Record

Slapers ~~exam~~ Joseph Blinn Jury sworn to try the case to wit, Albert S.
 Gambill, Stephen Tindal, Christopher Lammay, John May, Aaron May
 Voluntary Swisher, Jacob Muff, John Robinson, George Courvo, Alexander
 Skeels, William C. Miller, and Nelson Sprinkle Verdict
 for the Plaintiff \$22.10 cents with interest
 from the 19th of February 1834 till paid & Judgment
 accordingly

~~to Krings exam at St. Albans, Conn. & Krings agrees, the Defendant agrees
 in Court to pay the costs of the suit~~

Speizer (for Harper) & Fisher continue for Defendant

Marion adm^r & Philip Pettay, plea waives & Judgment confessed for
 \$100. with interest from 19th Feb^y 1834 till paid & for one half the costs
 & Judgment accordingly

Rutherford adm^r & Blinn continue for Defendant

Sears (for Geo. McKimber & Co.) & Lewis P. continue by Counsel

Chandler & Blinn plea waives & Judgment confessed for \$100 Damages & Costs
 of suit

Moyes & Merry continue by Counsel

Nichols & Rader continue by Counsel

Grande & Mathews adm^r continue by Counsel

Krings exam & Krings adm^r Jury sworn to try the case to wit the same
 Jury as May agt Melch. Verdict for Defendant, and Judgment,
 for costs only, to be Series of the Goods and Chattle of the said ~~testator~~
 in the hands of the exec^r to be administered

Miller & Pessw continue by Counsel

Peckham & Looter Oldf continue

- May & Rader plea of Son assault pleads Gentleman's Office
- Perry & Clarke on Reby bond ^{a sum will go} ~~to be~~ ~~proven~~ & are now arrived
- Wenters & Chrisman continue
- Miller & Brew continue by count
- Lincoln & Mayfield . . . same
- Chavon & Herty M & C at arid St A Gentleman's Office and Center
- Owen & Campbell continue by count
- Ransom & Gaden center
- Tharston & Samuels M & C at arid St A ^{by duplication} Office and Center
- Shethen & Krotyer M & C at arid St A Gentleman's Office and Center
- Graham & Meltin M & C at arid St A Gentleman's Office & Center
- Miller & Peckering by count continue until the next term

Ordered that the Court be adjourned untill
to Monday Morning at 10 O'Clock

R. P. Fletcher

Thursday the 20th of February 1834.

Richard P. Fletcher, Sheriff of Lewis, Joseph Oliver
Plea & Thomas E. G. Justice

- Merron & Melch plea was Plaintiff confers for the Debt in the
declaration mentioned with intent to keep same equity /
- Reid & Peckering same
- Bowman & Smith same
- Mayell & Fuller same
- Sheels & Ferry same
- Levenson & Fisher same
- Kesler & Shoemaker same 4 cents for the
1100 with 60 1100
- Goffman Hooper & Briggs same

20th P. Williams Jr & Kennedy pleaded guilty & Inspect Confess for the act in the Declaration (Mentions with intent to kill & avoid agency)

Coffman Rob & Smith same

Roller & Logan PD same

Thompson Rob & Caldwell same

Coffman Rob & McHenry same

Lawson & Sootley PD same

Danson abm & Fisher same

Cokely & McMahon same

Rutherford & McCartney same

Graham & Brock same

same & Harris PD same

same & Stomatus same

Smith & McCartney same

Harris (for Grandly) & Mathews same

Richard & Furry PD continues

same & same continues

Coffman Rob & Furry continues

Moore & Furry continues

Coffman . . . & Furry continues

Wright . . . & Furry same

Lawson . . . & Stomatus continues

Erwin . . . & Miller PD M. E set aside, N. G. for replication of press and continues

Marren PD & Mason PD M. E set aside N. G. for replication of press and continues

Stover & Gray & Ranken N. a. pleads for replication of press and continues

May & Reader Jury sworn to by the press to wit, George Crawford

Amos Burrydes, Larkin Harris, James Paynes, Joseph Coffinger

Archibald S. Rutherford, French S. Buff, Stoughton Bruffey.

John Effinger, Henry Gelman & James Myle, & John May, and having
 # heard the evidence and argument of Counsel retires from the bar to
 consider of their Verdict.

Rico & Grandin, Office Sergeant set aside payment pleaded. Herdple calls off
 (and continues)

Rico & Gordon. second

On the Motion of Hugh Bruffy, and he having paid to George H. Christmas
 Deputy Sheriff \$3.38 cents, it is ordered that a Decree be granted him to
 (C) Keep an Ordinary in the County until ^{the next} May Court to be held for this County
 on his entering into bond with security in the Clerk's office as the Law directs,
 the Court being satisfied that the said Hugh Bruffy is a man of honest & good
 good character, not addicted to drunkenness or gambling, and that he
 will keep ^{orderly and} ~~useful~~ houses of entertainment.

Mr. Shad (for B. Young) & J. Oliver. Continues by Counsel

Prout Joseph Keravens,

Miss & Penner vs leaves given to answer the Declaration, and cause continues
 (and by Counsel the suit is to return to place on the docket.

Gelman & Oliver plea was the apt Confessⁿ for the debt in the debt
 (C) mentioned with interest & costs, subject to C. of \$30 paid 2^d Oct^r 1892
 and by \$37.25 paid the 23^d Sept^r 1892.

Switzer & Christmas Jury sworn to by the Judge with Benjamin
 Nanpet, William Ruess, George May, William B. Miller, Jacob Hupp
 Henry Baresch, George M. Gathin, Jacob Brathwaite, Oliver Sterling
 # Thomas D. Ricks, John Deason, Edmund M. Clifton, whereupon by Counsel
 Edmund M. Clifton one of the said Jurors is withdrawn, and the rest
 of the Jurors found rendering their Verdict discharge and the cause is
 (Continued).

Graham & Miller continues by Counsel

Graham & Oliver, the Defendant files interrogatories, which were sworn
 (C) to by the said Defendant, and the Court being satisfied that the said
 interrogatories were pertinent and proper, it is ordered that the Plaintiff
 answer the same in solemn form and upon oath - and the cause
 is continued until the next term.

Or that the Court do adjourn until the 7th Monday
in March next.

Gravens

Virginia to wit,

An account held for the County of Rockingham on the 7th Monday being the 17th day of March 1834,

Present,

James Hunter. Michael H. Harris. Reuben Allison
and Robert G. Nathan for *& by Jury*

Abstract of Deeds and other writings admitted to Record in the Clerk's
office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 1st to the 28th
day of February 1834. both days (included) was reported to the
Court by the Clerk thereof, and being examined by the Court
it ordered to be entered on the Minutes, and a list to be
posted up at the door of the Court house of said County,
and is as follows (to wit,)

- found* ✓ Deeds of trust on Personal estate from John Sanders to Henry Sanders for B. Sanders
- found* ✓ Deeds trust on P. estate Noah Spitzer to S. M. Gambill for Coffman Cooper
- found* ✓ Deeds trust on land for Argubright to David Steele for William Richard
- found* ✓ Deeds trust on land P. Jones Strine to S. M. Gambill for David Steele
- found* ✓ Deeds trust on P. estate Larkin Rains to S. M. Gambill for S. H. Coffman
- found* ✓ Deeds for land George Stetter to David Stetter
- found* ✓ Deeds for land M. Richard to William Bester
- found* ✓ Deeds for land Jacob Paul to George Sherman.

not found Address for Land Jacob Paul to George Sherman.

Address trust B. Slonaker (on P. estate) to George Clarke for John F. Effinger

found Address for Land Michael Detman to Henry Gilmore

not found Address for Land Peter D. Nicks to same

Address trust on P. estate B. Slonaker to George Clarke for Geo. A. Rice &

Address loan for Personal estate Gedeon Shesky to Henry Barretto

not found Address for Land Abraham Miller P. to Daniel Miller

do Address trust on Land R. Ranken to S. M. Gambill for S. M. Coffman & Co.

do Address trust on Land James Blain to Henry J. Gambill for Jacob Dinkel

Address of loan from George S. Sherman to Joseph Child

Address trust on P. estate Joseph Child to Henry J. Gambill for Geo. Brown &

not found Address for Land William Maider to Joseph Moyer

do Address for Land Isaac Burrow to William Earnshaw

found Address for Land John Sherman to Jesse Noelston

not found Address for Land same to Barretto & Huffman

do Address trust on Land James Burrow to Reuben Kooty for Peter P. Kooty

do Address for Land Land Mount to Peter Head

found Address for Land Benja. Mount to Samuel Mount

not found Address for Land same to William B. Gaudin & Thompson

found Address for Land Patrick McMann to Isaac Thomas

do Address for Land Martin Marty P. to Peter Child

do Address for Land Thomas M. Stet to William K. Gaily

do Address for Land John B. Host P. to George M. Pefer

do Address for Land George M. Pefer P. to John B. Host

do Address for Land same to Elizabeth Rutherford

found Address trust on Land Ephraim Woods to R. Harrison Jr for George Roden &

not found Address for Land Henry Smith son to Benjamin Smith

Address trust on P. estate John Barthol to E. H. Smith for Adam Fobough

not found Address trust on Land John Emory to E. H. Smith for William Barry

do Address for Land Thomas Stolt to Justenard Austin

found Address for Land John Beard to Daniel Mury

Address loan John Stoen P. to Samuel Sheets (for Personal estate)

found Address for Land Polly Huffman to John & Barretto Huffman

found Address for Land Brown Fayette to George Crawford

not found Address for Land Benwell Davis to Lurion Leaf &

found Address for Land Joseph Mahey to Daniel N. Huston

On the motion of Daniel M. Hyle, and with the consent of Mary Hyle Comynette for said Daniel, it is ordered that the said Daniel M. Hyle be forthwith discharged from the care of his said Comynette, and that she restore to the said Daniel the property which came into her hands as Comynette aforesaid, and by like consent it is ordered that James Hall be appointed to examine, inspect to examine state and settle the accounts of the said Mary Hyle as Comynette aforesaid, and make report thereof to the Court.

James T. Graves who was appointed Commissioner to value the lands of Jos Peter Runkle and by the executor thereof made a report of the said Valuation, which was examined by the Court and ordered to be Received.

A Writing purporting to be the Last will and Testament of Michael Runkle was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of James T. Graves & John Cook two of the ~~executors~~ witnesses thereto, & Writing thereto purporting to be an addition to said will was also proved by the oaths of said witness, in with the said will ordered to be Received, and on the motion of John Runkle the executor therein named, who with security entered into bond in the penalty of \$2500. and made oath thereto, ~~as above~~ a Certificate is granted them for obtaining approval thereof in due form, and it is ordered that John Cook Joseph Moyer Daniel Sellars and James T. Graves or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of said Michael Runkle and make report to the Court.

A Writing purporting to be the Last will and Testament of Margaret Sipe and was presented in Court and was further proved by the oaths of George Maury & a witness thereto & ordered to be Received, ~~as above~~, and on the motion of George Helms & Jacob Sipe the executors named in the said will who entered into bond with security, in the penalty of \$100. and made oath thereto, as a certificate is granted them for obtaining approval thereof in due form, and it is ordered that Isaac Burke, John

Regr. Peter Boyer & George Armentrout, or any 3 of them being
first sworn, do appraise the estate of the said Margaret Sepe and
make report to the Court

An appraisment bill of the estate of Samuel Miller es. was returned
and ordered to be received

On the Motion of William Steen, who made oath thereto, and
with security entered into bond in the penalty of \$2000. a certificate
is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate
of Daniel Daniels and in due form, and it is ordered that
Jacob C. Ewing, Christian G. Carter, Martin Miller and Adair
Gorris, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate
of the said Daniel Daniels and make report to the Court

Deed of emancipation of from Adam Ward to his Negro man
Jesse, was acknowledged & ordered to be recorded

Marion Hair & William M. DeRos on a Note for Money
paid as security, John Jones, and Deft call not appearing, Judgment
is awarded the Plaintiff for \$49 with interest from 23. February 1874 till paid
Holds

Decker & Co & Looker P. upon a Note as a Debt paid, John
the promisor & the obligor are dead

J. M. Hall and Co. & Charles P. same

Barr & Curtis P. same

Bowman & Fisher P. same

Garney & Maggart P. same

Garney (Guardian) & Maggart P. same

On the Motion Samuel ^{Steffman} ~~Steffman~~, it is ordered that Richard P.
Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and
settle the estate accounts of Harriet Sherry and with the
executors thereof, and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Jacob Spaden, exec of Jacob Spaden es.
and son Jacob Spaden as admin of Margaret Spaden es.

It is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of the said, Jacob & Margaret and make report to the Court

On the Motion of T. R. Brown executor of John Percy and
 It is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said John Percy and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Jacob Bloer admr of Adam Bloer and
 It is ordered that Joseph Maury be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Adam Bloer and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Daniel Mathew Shiff, Herair Marby was appointed his deputy, and was qualified according to Law

An appraisment bill and sale bill of Elizabeth Delmon and was returned and ordered to be Recorded

An appraisment bill and sale bill of Mary Brown and was returned & ordered to be Recorded

On the Petition of Jacob Bowman Votter for way for a road. Beging at the Public Road from Fitchs Mill to the old furnace, Call the Mountain Valley Road, at a corner of Saml Martys land and from thence the way states in the petition to the Keefells land road, at or near Jacob Bownmans saw mill - It is ordered that John Rader Jr, John Seay, Jacob Woolf and Jacob Roads, or any 3 of them being first sworn do view the said way and make report thereof of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same to the Court

On the Motion of the executor of George Whisman and it is ordered
 that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine estate
 and settle the estate accounts of said George Whisman and make
 report to the Court

Ordered that Nicholas M. Weston, Robert Grattan Jr. John W. Campbell
 Jacob Peck and Peabody Harrison, any ^{or more} two of whom may act, be appointed
 Commissioners to superintend and elect to be held at the Court house
 of Rockingham ^{on the 1st of May at 10 o'clock} for the election of a proper person to represent the County
 in the next General assembly. — and that Isaac Thomas, Benjamin
 Miller, George Roads, Jacob Roads & John Cowan, any two of whom
 may act, be in like manner, appointed Commissioners to superintend and
 election for the like purpose, and on the same day at the house of
 Richard Peabody in the town of Sparta, — and that Madison
 Moffett, John Bourne, Abraham Mann, John Bell and Peter
 Lewis, any ^{or more} two of whom may act, be in like manner, appointed
 Commissioners to superintend an election, ^{and for the like purpose} on the day aforesaid, at the
 School house of John Ziegler at a place (call'd Timberhill) — and that
 Henry Connor, Jacob Connor, John Lewis, Henry Miller Jr. & Jacob
 Miller, any ^{or more} two of whom may act, be in like manner appointed
 Commissioners to superintend an election for the like purpose, on the
 day aforesaid, at ~~the house~~ ^{the place} of the house, and at the place call'd Carols
 old Store, — and that William Brown, Weaver, Samuel Coote
 Isaac Reddle, Jacob Trumbo, and ^{Samuel} ~~James~~ Miller, any ^{or more} two of
 whom may act, be in like manner appointed Commissioners to
 superintend an election for the like purpose, and on the same day
 and at the house of where John Reddle formerly lived, ^{in proper place, and it is} ~~therein~~
 further ordered that the said Commissioners, or any two of whom
 may act as such, being ^{respectfully} qualified, according to law, superintend
 the said election, and make reports thereof in the manner directed
 by Law.

On the Motion of Philip Knapp executor of Henry Spetzger and it
 Ordered that Abraham Knapp and William G. Thompson, be appointed
 Commissioners to examine estate and settle the estate accounts of
 said Henry Spetzger, with the said executor and make report to the
 Court

On the Motion of Daniel Mathews Sheriff of this County to whom
a writ of habeas corpus of the estate of Antonio, Baecoes. was granted. etc.
as and that John F. Effinger, Abraham Smith, James Hall and John
Kearney, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appear the
estate of the said Antonio, and make report to the Court

C. Smith is Benjamin Smith, Moses Joseph & James Joseph before a
Vicary for arrears of the peace & the Complaint of John Turner
the said Defendants appears in Court in discharge of their duty
and having heard the evidence of argument of Counsel, it is the Opinion
of the Court that the said James Joseph be discharged and that the
other Defendants be bound to their good behavior each in the
sum of \$50. and security in the sum of \$50. to keep the
peace and be of good behavior towards all the good Citizens
of this Commonwealth for the term of one year, from the
date hereof, and that they stand ~~exonerated~~ until they give
security agreeable to the above Order, and further that they pay
the costs of this prosecution, whereupon the said Moses Joseph
appears in Court, with Joseph Bellhew, Henry G. Leman and
James Joseph his security ~~approvers~~ ~~severally~~ severally
acknowledge themselves to owe and be indebted to his excellency
John Floyd Governor of Virginia, and his successor in office
in the sums following that is to say the said Moses Joseph
in the sum of \$50 and his said security in the sum of
\$50 jointly, to be livers of their Goods and Chattels Lands
and Tenements and for the use of the Commonwealth to be rendered
upon the Condition that the said Moses Joseph, shall keep the
peace and be of good behavior towards all the Citizens of
this Commonwealth and more particularly towards the said
John Turner, then the above Obligation to be paid

Mathew Tate a Soldier in the Revolutionary War, made in open Court his declaration, which was signed in the manner directed by Law and by the war department, and the Court being ^{satisfied} ~~being~~ thereof ~~the same~~ is ordered to be Certified in the manner directed by the war department.

Christian Learning Sale Guardian of Jeffers & Moor's came into Court, and returned under his said Guardianship which is ordered to be Certified, whereupon the Court doth appoint Stephen Tinsley Guardian of said Jeffers & Moor's who is an infant under the age of 14 years and orphan of William Moor's and who ^{enters} ~~enters~~ into bond with security in the penalty of \$500 as the Law directs.

On the Motion of ~~John~~ ^{John} Depoy, and for reasons appearing to the Court it is ordered that he be exempted from the payment of County Expenses ^{for his own John Depoy} ~~expenses~~, which is ordered to be Certified.

On the Motion of Jacob Stoop son an Orphan (and late a Minor now of age) of Henry Stoop and, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to state and settle the Guardians accounts of Jacob Richardson ^{his} Guardian, and Samuel Groves as Receiver as his Guardians Subsequently for said Jacob Stoop and that the said Commissioner in said Statement & Settlement, examine and correct, all and any accounts filed or made by said Guardians and either of them and that he make report thereof to the Court.

Benjamin Wright upon a return for a breach of the peace on the Complaint of Robert Parks Sheriff and Defendant discharged.

Benjamin Smith, with Moses Joseph & James Joseph his Executors, appears in Court and severally acknowledges themselves to owe and be indebted to his Excellency John Floyd Governor of Virginia and his Successors in office, in the sum of \$100 that is to say the said Benjⁿ Smith in the sum of \$50 and the said Moses & James jointly in the sum of

\$50 to be levied of their respective Goods and Chattle
Lands and Tenements and for the use of the County
yet upon the Condition that the said Benjamin
Smith shall keep the peace and be of good behavior
towards all the Citizens of this County and more particu-
larly towards John Furren, then the Recog to be
bound to

A Register of Severa apier Negroes taken by the Clerk
+ thereof, was presented in Court and being compared with
the said Severa, and found duly made, a copy thereof is
ordered to be furnished her.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until the 3rd ^{Monday} ~~Friday~~
in April Next

David Hunter

At a Court held at the Court house of Rockingham
on Saturday the 29th day of March 1834 for the trial and
Examination of Elizabeth Cowan Spensator who was com-
mitted to the Jail of this County on Suspicion of Felony
and stands charged with feloniously murdering her infant
Male Child

Present
Pearly Harrison Joseph Cravens George Clarke
Abraham Smith & Charles C. Spears J. & Justices

The Prisoner was led to the bar in custody of the Jailor
and being thereof charged with the felony aforesaid
pleaded not Guilty whereupon sundry Whiskeys to wit
Ann C. Allenick Jacob Allenick Mary Mahoney
Elizabeth Crinn Samuel C. Hinkle Amoson M. Hume
& Oscar F. Cravens were sworn and examined touching
the offense whereunto the said Prisoner stands charged
and the said Prisoner being fully heard in her defense
by her Counsel the Court upon consideration are of the
opinion that the said Prisoner is Not Guilty and

that she be hence discharged

And the Court arose

Peachy Harrison

Virginia to wit

At about held for the County of Rockingham, on Monday the 21st day of April 1834.

Present

Peachy. Harrison Joseph Leaven, James Hamilton R
Charles C. Spear E. G. Justice

A list of Conveyances, and other writings carried to Record in the Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham, from the 1st to the 31st of March 1834 both days included, was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and being examined, was ordered to be entered on the Minutes, and a list set to posted up at the door of the Court house of said County, which list is in the words and figures following to wit,

- not found Advers for said George M. Pifer to Archibald M. Weston
- do Advers for said John Burkholtz to Joseph Burkholtz
- do Advers for said to Samuel Bowman
- do Advers for said Daniel Strickland to Solomon Strickland
- found Advers for said Daniel Baker to Ann M. Orr
- not found Advers for said Gideon Salvage to George Moyers
- do Advers for said Philip Miller to Henry Tutwiler
- found Advers for said P. Estate Isaac Merrick to Margaret Merrick
- found Advers for said Adams Price to Jacob Price
- found Advers for said Hugh N. Powell to
- not found Advers for said ^{Gathman} ~~Robertson~~ Taught R to John Taught
- do Advers for P. Estate Joseph Beard to W. J. Gambill in trust for Matthew Speck
- do Advers for said Henry S. Paisley to Jacob Paisley
- joint Advers for said John D. Moyers to Henry Ogden
- not found Advers for said Joseph Williams to John Chrisman
- do Advers for said Joseph Dougherty to David Puler
- do Advers for said to Adam Stouderbell
- do Advers for P. Estate W. Southern to J. M. Gambill in trust for S. H. Coffman
- found Advers for said Mathias Long to James Smith

- found Adm for Lams Henry Tarflinger to Philip Parrott
- do Adm for Lams Joseph Burscholder to Martin Burscholder
- do Adm for Lams Christian Starn to Abraham Zickel
- found Adm for Lams Martin Marty to William Pickering
- Adm for P. estate Joseph Stapp to Joseph Bowman in trust for S. Bowman
- found Adm for Lams Joseph McMullen to S. McComb in trust for Geo. Christian
- not found Adm for Lams Martin Kramer to John Burscholder
- do Adm for Lams David Seig P to Jacob Paul
- do Adm for Lams John Christian to David Peltz
- do Adm for Lams Peter Burscholder to Jacob Earmann
- do Adm for Lams Jo. McMullen to Geo. Christian in trust for Geo. Cyler
- do Adm for Lams Carlos Burscholder to Samuel H. Burscholder
- do Adm for Lams Henry Smithson to Samuel Allman
- Adm for P. estate David Eagle to A. Howdusell in trust for Philip Eagle
- not found Adm for Lams E. Stover to David Goos
- found Adm for Lams Geo. Harrisson to Matilda Atkinson
- found Adm for Lams Geo. Duesen to S. McComb in trust for David Burscholder
- not found Adm for Lams Jacob Burscholder to Lewis Miller
- do Adm for Lams same to same
- do Adm for Lams . . . same to . . . same
- do Adm for Lams John Marble P. to Tobias P. McComb
- do Adm for Lams Martin Burscholder to John Burscholder
- Adm for P. estate Lewis Palmer to James Wall in trust for W. Hoffman
- found Adm for Lams Adam Broughton to Frederick Cupper
- Adm for Lams Christian Harrison to Henry Plauger (P. estate)
- not found Adm for Lams same to John Dietrich
- do Adm for Lams Polly Armstrong P to Henry Armstrong
- do Adm for Lams Hannah Maloney to M. Nichols
- do Adm for Lams S. M. Hamble to same
- do Adm for Lams Jacob Stoop to Lewis Zickel

On the Motion of Samuel Hoffelt, who enters into bond with security in the sum of \$400. and reads oath thereto as the Law clerk, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Michael Toland and is granted him in due form, and it is ordered that George Bowman, George George, Geo. Henry Eankart & Isaac May or any 3 of them being

first sworn as appraisers the estate of the said Michael Folger and make report to the Court

C Abraham Belcher ~~son~~ of Joseph Belcher, over 14 years of age came into Court and made Choice of Matthew Nair as his Guardian who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$300. conditions as the Law directs

Isaac Moffett one of the Constables in the united & Broken Paper and Southwick district, came into Court and resigned the said Office of Constable, whereupon, the Court unanimously appointed William Bryan a Constable in the said district in the room of said Moffett, (until the July Court to be held for this County in ~~July~~ 1835.) whereupon the said William Bryan with security entered into bond in the penalty of \$2000. ~~and took the several~~ Oaths of Office as the Law directs, which bond is ordered to be Recorded the Court being of the Opinion that the said W. Bryan is a man of honesty probity and good character —

C ~~Abraham~~ Hoop orphan of Lemmy Hoop and over 14 years of age came into Court and made Choice of Samuel Richardson who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100. conditions as the Law directs.

C Ordered that Philip Parrott be appointed Guardian of Brianow. M. Parrott & Susanah I Parrott his two Children, who are under 14 years of age, who thereupon appeared in Court and entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$200. conditions as the Law directs

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to morrow morning at 10 o'clock.
Pursby, Clerk

Tuesday the 20th day of April 1834

Present

(Danns Menten, Richard P. Fletcher, George Clarke
and Augustus Watkinson & Gent Justice

Reuben Moore & Isaac of Bathurst and Adeline two
infant Colours Children who were emancipated by the will of
Thomas Moore dec^d Plaintiffs

vs^{agt}
said Bathurst & Adeline for whom Samuel Hoffman
has been appointed Guardian ad litem and Michael
afie Thomas of Colono and Nathaniel afie Thomas
of Colono Defendants

In Chancery

This Cause came on to be heard by Court of all parties this 22^d day
of ~~May~~ April 1834. in the bill, answer, the dispositions of witnesses
and exhibits, whereupon the argument of Counsel being heard
the Court doth approve now and decree that the ~~interest~~ interest
of the said Bathurst and Adeline in the two Manors dec^d of
said mentioned in the bill (and which was devised by Thomas
Moore dec^d by his last will to the slaves which by said will he
emancipated). be sold on the following terms, the third of
the amount for which the interest of the said Bathurst and
Adeline in said 200 acres of land may sell together with the
costs of sale, to be paid on the day of sale, and the balance in
two equal annual installments, - and the Court doth further
order and decree that the Plaintiff Reuben Moore, (who is
herely appointed a commissioner for that purpose), do proceed to
sell the ~~interest~~ interest of the said Bathurst and Adeline in
the 200 acres of land on the terms above mentioned; The Court
doth further order and decree that before the said Reuben Moore
proceeds to sell the said interest he shall advertise the time
and place of sale for at least 3 weeks in the newspapers
printed in the town of Harrisburg and at some public
place in the neighbourhood of s^d town for the same period
the said Moore will take the notes for the back payments
payable to himself as Guardian of the s^d Bathurst & Adeline

with good personal security, and the Money when received by the said
Reuben Moore, shall be held by him, and be accounted for by him, as
Guardian of the said Catharine and Adeline, But the said Reuben
Moore shall retain a Lien on the said interest, so to be sold by him
for the payment of the back instalments. It is further ordered and
decreed that the sd Reuben Moore execute to the purchaser, as
concomitant affairs, a Deed, with special Warranty, and that he
retain out of the Money for which the said interests may sell, and
the costs of prosecuting this suit, -

Demetri Palurus - Stephenas Locker & Co. on appeal
James - Abraham Joseph, up on an appeal. (Booked & Continued)

Abner Richard P. Fletcher
Reuben Moore \$ 4000

an 78 A report of an alteration in the Road leading from Harrisburg to
Cty 18 New Market, made agreeable to the Petition of John Leary, was returned
into Court by the Clerks, and the Court having duly examined the same

C It is ordered that the said alteration be established agreeable to the
said report, and on the said Petitioner opening the said New way,
and putting it in good repair before the said old Road is stoped, and
also that he keep the same in good repair for 12 Months from
after the same has been opened &c.

On the Motion Henry Connor Esq. of John Sellan dec'd it is
C ordered that Jacob Burk be appointed a commissioner to examine
C estate and settle the estate accounts of said John Sellan dec'd
and make report to the Court

Ordered that George Oliver be appointed Guardian of
+ Jacob L. My son orphan of John My son dec'd under 14 years of
+ age, who entered into bond with security in the sum of
\$1000. conditioned as the Law directs.

On the Petition of John Brown to alter a part of the North
Mountain Road on the lands of your Petitioner, whose alteration
C is to begin, where the present lane leaves the old Road, between
John Farflinger and the said Brown lands and running with said
lane passing said Brown house and Smiths shop &c. unto the

It interests the said Road, it is ordered that Peter Driver, John Tarflinger, Daniel Good & Isaac May, or any 3 of them being first sworn, do view the said alteration and make a report of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same thereof to the Court.

On the Petition of George Loe for a way for a road from the County line of Shannandoah to the Plain Mills the Road to Commerce near Linton Reaps on the County line, on the lands of Isaac May from there through the lands of George Loe, Jacob Miller and Richard Thomas and across the farm to the North Branch of the Shannandoah river, to the said Plain Mills. It is ordered that John Bell, Philip Knapp Jr. Mathias Marshall Jr. and Christian Loe or any 3 of them being first sworn do view the said way and make report to the Court of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same to the Court.

Carroll & Berry v. Embury &c upon a Notice on a bond taken for the delivery of property. &c. Notice given as all the defendants except Horace and one ~~are~~ are are.

On the Motion of John Corcoran, it is ordered that he have leave to withdraw for the bond filed in the papers of the said Plaintiff by stealing a paper of John Looker now dead upon his filing in the said papers an attested copy thereof.

A Register of Jesse a Negro man was brought into Court & was examined and compared with the said Jesse, and found only now a copy thereof is ordered to be furnished him as the Law directs.

On the Motion of the Rev. Philip Broderick, ~~Resident~~ Resident. who produces a Decree of his being in Regular Communion with the Methodist Episcopal Church, and a preacher therein a Testimonial is granted him to celebrate the rights of

Attorney in the state of Virginia, according to the form of
his said Oath he having taken the oath of fidelity to the
Commonwealth, — and entered into bond with security as the Law directs.

On the Motion of Henry Cuyt adms with the well arrears of Margaret
Howe and it is Ordained that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a
Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of the
said Margaret Howe and make report to the Court

Ordains that the Court be adjourns until the 2^d Monday in May
next

David Heriot

Virginia to wit

At a Court held for the County of Rockingham, on the Third Monday
being the 19th day of May in the year 1834.

Present

John W. Campbell, Stephen Stansbarger, Jacob Stansbarger
and Robert Grattan for. E. G. Jenkins

Adits of Courtyeers, and other writings admitted to Record in the
Clerks Office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 1st to the
22^d day of April, both days included, was returned into Court by
the Clerk thereof, and being examined by the Court, is Ordained to be
entered on the Minutes, and a like list to be posted up at the door
of the Court house of said County, which is in the words following

- found Adms for land John Steph and wife to John Carpenter
- found Adms for land same to James Cobb in trust for John Carpenter
- Adms for P. Property Eli Harry to D. P. Nagen in trust for Isaac Parr to
- not found Adms for land Reuben Coffman to Henry Toler.
- do Adms for land Richard Beggerton to Abraham Pierce &
- do Adms for land John Early to Frederick Young
- do Adms for land Jacob Winkler to William Snyder
- do Adms for land Robert Gray to Daniel Garber,
- found Adms for land Daniel Harrison to Nathaniel Harrison
- found Adms for land Nathaniel Harrison to Daniel Harrison
- not found Adms for land William G. Thompson to Adam Lichter
- do Adms for land May Merus to William G. Thompson.

- not found ✓ Address for P. Property Jacob Wendt to S. M. Gambill in trust for P. Harrison
 Address of Partition of land Frederick Stufferman P. and Jacob Roller
 ✓ Address for land Jacob Roller to George Showalter
 found Address for land Adam White to Bernard & J. Stufferman
 not found Address for land Jacob Rife to Benjamin Mount
 ✓ Address of Release for land John Henry P. to Benj. Mount
 ✓ Address for land Henry Cuyler to Samuel Coffman
 ✓ Address for land Benjamin Tiedes wife to Richard Wingfield
 ✓ Address for land . . . same . . . to Coffman & Cooper
 ✓ Address for Personal Property S. Keller to S. M. Gambill in trust for A. S. Roach & Co
 not found ✓ Address for P. Property Annos. Keys. to M. B. Clinch in trust for M. G. Thompson & Co
 found Address for land Peter Burckholder to George Shaper
 ✓ Address for land George Clinch to Joseph Clinch
 not found ✓ Address for P. Property James Melick to R. P. Fletcher in trust for John Moore
 found Address for land John Burckholder to Charles Burckholder
 ✓ Address for land Daniel Boughner son to Louisa B. Borne
 ✓ Address for land Louisa B. Borne to Sarah Boughner
 found Address for land John Dapoy wife to Adam Buder
 not found Address for land George Carpenter to William Carpenter
 ✓ Address for land J. C. Barthus to A. M. Sturges in trust for Geo. M. Kemper
 found Address for land W. Proothart's son to Daniel Fiskel
 ✓ Address for P. Property Joseph Stapp to S. M. Gambill in trust for S. St. Coffman
 found Address for land George M. Kemper to Malinda Atkinson
 found Address for land Elizabeth Atkinson to Geo. M. Kemper
 found Address for land L. M. Barthus to S. Harbinger in trust for Geo. M. Kemper
 not found Address for land Christian Burckholder P. to John Harrison
 ✓ Address for land Jacob Parker to Jacob Rube P. in trust for Henry S. Parker
 ✓ Address for land William Dunslop's son to David Bournard
 ✓ Address for land . . . same . . . to Christiana Sides
 found Address for land M. Reckarts' son to Jacob Runkle
 found Address for land Jacob Whitemore to Daniel Whitemore
 found Address for land Solomon Stufferman to Samuel Liggitt
 not found Address for land Jacob Martz to George Martz

not found
found

Abraham S. Williams son to Anthony Stuffer and
Abraham S. Williams son to David Steele

not found
found

Abraham S. Williams son to S. Joseph in trust for Ruth Joseph
Abraham S. Williams son to S. M. Gambell in trust for Coffman & Cooper
Abraham S. Williams son to Isaac Meyer

On the Motion of Abraham Deal was of Abraham Deal as
it is ordered that Geo. M. Kemper be appointed a commissioner to
examine said and settle the estate accounts of said Abraham Deal
and make report to the Court

As and that John Black be appointed Survey of precinct No 1.
on the Road from his house into the Turnpike Road, and that he
with his own hands open the said Road and keep the same in
good repair, and the said Black and his said hands are hereby exempted
from working on any Road

On the several Motions of William Hite, Samuel Dinkels, Geo
Nicholas, Jacob Dinkels & Catharine Graham, Peter Dinkels, Pauline Sheets,
John T. Gadsden, Jacob Rader, Richard Pickens, Geo. Eyles, William Fitzwater, Daniel Kinard
William West, James Harrison, Jacob Kefferman
and they having paid to the Sheriff the tax imposed by law. Security is
hereby granted them to keep private entertainments, in this County
until the May Court 1835—

On the Motion of James Foley and Solomon Parkey, Hugh Bruffy,
William R. Gayley and Anthony Stuffer and
they having paid to the Sheriff \$18. each, it is ordered that a license be
granted them to keep ^{or amuse} ~~houses of public entertainment~~ in this County
until the next May Court (1835) on their entering into bond with
Security in the ~~possession~~ of Clerk's office as the law directs, the Court
being of the opinion that they are ^{all} men of good Character, not
addicted to drunkenness or gambling, and that they will keep
useful houses of entertainments.

On the Motion of Catharine Perceps orphan of Voluntas Perceps
over 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of Nicholas
Mallen as their guardian, and it is ordered that the said Nicholas Mallen
be appointed guardian for Geo. Perceps under 14 years of age and Child of said
V. Perceps and who enters into bond with security in the sum of \$200 as law directs

Grand Jury, sworn to with George M. Peper (foreman) / Jacob
 Boston Petersen, Adam Wied, George Shoreman, Daniel
 Smith, Thomas Mansfield, Tobias Dean, Jacob Orin, Reuben
 Allen, Merrill Rogers, Sinclair Kyle, Nathl Harrison, John
 Acker, Jonathan Branner, Abraham Knapp, Joseph Kefelo,
 Joseph Dunkelohaw, Jacob A. Hetchell and Peter Oster, who
 were sworn a Grand Jury, and received their Charge and Return
 from the Bar to consider of their Presentments. and after
 some time returned into Court, and made the following an indictment
 agt. O'Rourke, agt. Reuben, agt. ^{Boyle} agt. McWhorter, agt. Pegglesman
 agt. Sutherland, agt. A. Smith, agt. Jacob ^{Rader} ~~Boyle~~, ~~and~~ for
 assaults & battery altru bill, and an indictment agt. Murray
 for a malicious trump, altru bill, and the said Grand Jury having nothing
 further to present, were discharged, and it is ordered that process issue
 agt. the said Defendants to answer said indictments returnable before the
 next term.

On the Motion of John Brown administrator of John Hyson and it is
 ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner
 to examine the estate and settle the estate accounts of said John
 Hyson and make report to the Court.

A Settlement of the estate accounts of John Moore dec. was
 returned into Court, and examined & ordered to be Recorded

~~at the Court, before the Court, before the Court,~~

Costy & Perce. the Defendant appears in Court in Custody
 and confides a fragment for \$75. Damages, and Costs of suit
 and was by the People allay pray in Custody, whereupon the
 said Defendant delivered up a schedule of his estate and took
 the oath of an insolvent debtor, and it is ordered that he be
 discharged, provided he is not in Custody for any other Cause.

A Settlement of the estate of Voluntary Perce decedent, was
 returned and examined by the Court, and ordered to be Recorded

Richard P. Fletcher, a Commissioner of the Revenue, ^{for this Court}
 came into Court and gave the Court ^{the} ~~the~~ ^{information} ~~information~~ by Law, respecting
 Tavern Taxes &c. which is ordered to be Certified

A appraisement bill and sale bill of the estate of Daniel
 Whitman dec. were returned & ordered to be Recorded

A writing purporting to be the last will and testament of Michael Moyes, and was presented in Court, and proved by the oaths of Jacob Fink & William Parks, two witnesses thereto for and to be Regular, whereupon Jacob Mockman the executor named in the said will appeared in Court and refused to qualify.

On the motion of Elizabeth Moyes, and satisfactory evidence appearing to the Court, it is ordered to be Certified to the permissive agency at Richmond, that Michael Moyes, who was a resident of the said agency at Richmond, died on the 4th day of April 1834, and that the said Elizabeth Moyes is the widow of said Michael Moyes.

On the Motion of Nancy Perre, widow of and satisfactory evidence appearing to the Court, it is ordered to be Certified to the permissive agency at Richmond, that John Perre Jr. who was a resident of the said agency at Richmond, died on the 10th day of January 1834, and that the said Nancy Perre is the widow of said John Perre deceased.

On the Motion of Richard Wingfield, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$2000, and made oaths thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Jacob Shoozy deceased in due form, and it is ordered that Daniel Bowman, Paul Carter, William Dr Pollock and Anthony Reade or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Jacob Shoozy and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of James Roalston executor of John Stedman deceased, it is ordered that Richard P. Feltham be appointed a Commissioner to examine the estate and settle the estate accounts of said John Stedman and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of Harrison Stouch, who produced Executives of his Orations, and also of his being in Regular Communication with the United Brethren in Christ, took the oaths of allegiance to this Commonwealth, and with Archibald Brock & Jacob ^{Stouch} ~~Stouch~~ his securities, entered into bond and acknowledged the same in the penalty of \$1000. Consequently in the Law directs, a Testimonial is granted him in due form.

Report of an alteration in the old Mountain road made agreeable to the Petition of John Brown, by the Viewers, was returned, and being examined by the Court, and there being no objections thereto, the said alteration is ordered to be established agreeably to said Report.

Witness purporting to be the last will and Testament of Abraham Erwin deceased, was presented in Court, and was proved by the oath of Eliza Erwin attesting thereto & ordered to lay for further proof.

Report of the Viewers made for the ^{opening} ~~alteration~~ of the road from Garkles Mill to the old furnace road, called the Mountain Valley road, made agreeable to the Petition of Jacob Bourne & was returned into Court, where upon, Reuben Harrison ^{being interested in} ~~appearing~~ the opening of said road it being shown through his lands ~~and~~ ^{and} ~~therefore~~ ^{therefore} ~~it is therefore~~ ^{it is therefore} ordered that the said Reuben Harrison be summoned to appear here at future Court next, to show cause why the said road shall not be opened agreeable to the said Report.

On the Motion of Jacob Boon executor of Abraham Boon deceased it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Abraham Boon and make report to the Court.

On the Petition of Abraham Byrd & others for alien of and for a road from the County line of Shannon Co. beginning at the public road (on said County line) leading to the Mapasawmutter Gap, opposite New Market passing through the lands of Jacob Williams & others as set forth in the petition and to enter the Valley road Mountain road at or near Lewis Garkles house it is ordered that Jacob Orin, Henry Wiley, George Mayson and Jacob Garkle or any 3 of them being first sworn do View the said way and make report to the Court of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same to the Court.

Harrison Mateo orphan of Patrick H. Mateo. over 14 years of age came into Court, and made choice

of Matthew Miller as his Guardian, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$50 as the law directs

Photo New Bechler orphan of Jacob Bechler now 14 years of age. ~~and~~ orphan came into Court and made choice of Daniel Stollen as his Guardian, and it is ordered that the said Daniel Stollen be appointed Guardian for Noah and Catharine Bechler, Children of said Jacob Bechler and under 14 years of age, the said Daniel Stollen having with security entered into acknowledgment bond with security in the penalty of \$100 as the law directs

Cook & Perley vs the Defendant Jacob Reinkens appears in Court and confesses a judgment for \$272.76 cents, with interest from 13 May 1829 till paid, (as per. Note filed), and costs.

Court & Barly. Jury sworn to by the Court, to wit, Joseph Christman, Jesse Roalston, William Hopkins, Richard Mansfield, William M. Pollock, John Miller, Henry Thomas, George Shaver, John Berry, Daniel Ayler, George Brannen, and James Davis, Verdict that the Defendant is guilty and amount 1 cent. At Judgment accordingly

Carpenter & Stone and agree settled

Rutherford & Thomas disburse agree

Pier & Sprinkles and agree settled

On the Motion of George Connor son of Joel S. Graves and, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Graves and and make report thereof to the Court

Warren vs. Mason, plea waived and judgment confessed for \$8.50 damages and costs of suit

Apool taken by the Sheriff of this County for the election of five trustees for the town of Harrisonburg on the last Saturday in March 1834, was returned into Court and ordered to be entered on the Merits. W

Prerogative Sand Cook

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to morrow morning at 11 o'clock

Saml. C. Coates

Peachy Garrison, Jacob Rush
Joseph Olney & Augustus Waterman & G. Fierstein

Ordered that the Sheriff Summon the Assizes Magistrate in this County to appear here on the second day of June Court Starts for the purpose of opening the County ~~term~~ ^{term} for the year 1834 and for the purpose of sitting with the Sheriff, or agent of the County for ^{any} public M^{or}es that may be in their hands, and also for the purpose of fixing on the proper place for holding the Court of this County, and to do and ~~perform~~ perform any other business relating to ^{business of} the County as shall be laid before them and particularly to consider of the laws relating to the granting of licenses to Merchants to retail spirituous liquors. ^{or}
And Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament

of Benjamin Mount. and was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of Samuel Bournan & John Clough, and also the Codicil thereto annexed was proved by the same witnesses, where with the said Will are ordered to be Recorded, and on the Motion of Abraham Wagg the executor named in the said Will, who made oaths thereto, and with the same, entered into and acknowledges bond in the penalty of \$3000 as the Law directs; and a Certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form, and it is ordered that said Bournan, Jacob Rife, David Bournan & Samuel Shanks or any 3 of them being first sworn as appears the estate of the said B. Mount and make report to the Court

Paul Long & J. J. Smith & upon all the sum money awarded in this case having been returned encased, they appear in Court and refers to give Counter Security, and agree to surrender up ~~the~~ their Guardianship of the children mentioned in said writ, which was ordered to be ~~in~~ of Record whereupon it is ~~ordered~~ that the said Smith & Guardians

as aforesaid, father to deliver over to the said Paul Long all the estate in them lands belonging to them said Mary, whereupon it is ordered that the said Paul Long be appointed guardian for Barbara Kite an infant under 14 years of age and child of Benjamin Kite deceased, who enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$2000 conditions as the law directs, and it is ordered that said rule be discharged

Mellor & Loring, up on a rule to Give Counter Security & The said Defendant appears in Court and with Benjamin Joseph Young her security enters into and acknowledges bond in the penalty of five Thousand Dollars, conditions as the law directs, and it is ordered that the said rule be discharged

K Lewis & Fisher on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

K Dawson & Fisher on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Rolles & Logan on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Estropoff (for New) & Carthage on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Shantz (for New) & Brown on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy May & Melchior on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Coffman & Hooper & Briggs on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Coffman & Hooper & Marty on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Williams & Karney on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Reid & Perkins on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cy Cowan & Looker on a Motion on Bail bond. Motion granted & execution awarded

Cornish & Bailey who was indicted on yesterday, appeared in Court, and by Court. ~~Commodore~~ Confessed a fugitive for the Court

Mellor & B. Mellor on Motion continued

Cy & Newman on Motion continued

Cy & Hull on Motion continued

Cy & Harper on Motion continued

State v McMahons continue for award

Young & Pochon & Pifer continue by Court

Rutherford as adm^r v Wenton M E was v & Agent for cost

Newman v West continue for the Plaintiff

Shawatta Infant, & Beggins continue for award

Smiths case v Merin & 2 sons continue for awards

Herrens v Kerly continue for the Defendant (costs)

On the Motion of John Setts, ^{& James Duff} and they having paid to G. H. Christianaw

Deputy Sheriff \$18. (the tax imposed by Law) it is ordered that a License be granted them to keep an Alehouse, in this County until the May Court 1835, on their entering into bond with surety in the Clerk's Office as the Law directs, the Court being of the opinion that they said John Setts, ^{& James Duff} are men of good character, not addicted to drunkenness or gambling, and that they will keep an orderly and useful house of entertainment,

On the Motion of Samuel Booth, and he having paid to G. H. Christianaw Deputy Sheriff, \$300 the tax imposed by Law, it is ordered that a License be granted him to keep private entertainment, in this County, until the May Court 1835.

Benjamin Nampeth the same ... same

Early for the above mentioned,

On the Motion of Benjamin Nampeth son of Peter Nampeth do it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine and settle the estate accounts of said Peter Nampeth and make report to the Court

Early for P v McMahons continue for Defendant ~~costs~~ and on the Motion of the said Defendant, it is ordered that William E. Clark witness in this case show Cause why he shall not be fined ^{according to Law} for his non attendance

Parish v Miller ordered agreed at the Plaintiff's costs

Miller v Green, on the Motion of Jeff, William Priddy is appointed to survey the lands & report & fair plat & reports to the Court and such continue

C B. Mello & A. Mello Continued by Court

C Gilmad & Gilmad same

C Mayo & May same

C Nichols & Radu Jr. same

C Peckering & Looker Dismissed M & set aside N. a & Freeman Continued

C May & Radu continued

C Winter & Chrisman . . . Continued by Court

C Lincoln & Mingfield . . . Continued by Court

C On the several Motions of Samuel Coote, Samuel Smith Esq. Deeds Penningbaker Esq. Mr. M. Pollock Esq. Geo. H. Chrisman, John F. Effinger Mellins G. Thompson Esq. Samuel Shaskit, Abraham Smith, M. had Effinger, Norton & Benicholaw & B. Brightwell; it is ordered that deems be granted them. Respectfully to delay execution against in this County until May Court 1835. the Court being of the opinion that where the places, where the applicants reside are proper and best places.
Present Anderson Moffett.

C Rutherford's adm & Carstrow, the Plaintiff replied generally to Special plea, pleaded by the Defendant and thereupon joins ^{Henry sworn} to suit, George Radu, Brother Lincoln, George Overholt, Harry Barreick, Benjamin Evans, George May, Brother Duff, John Seawright, Michael Moark, John Radu, Gordon Rogers & John Teter, all having heard the evidence and argument of Counsel were adjourned until to Morrow morning at 11 o'clock

C Fry & Whisman dismissed again (both times)

C Coote & Mathis offered Inquest set aside & pay until 4th of September & Freeman continued

C Reid & Mathis same

C Chrisman Esq & Nampelt same

C Reid & Dorr same

C Palmer (for Blair) & Palmer same

C Bible & Bible same

M. G. Thompson Ho & Maule. ~~When Judge set aside payment~~
~~for 30 days~~
 General location of fine and contents

Perry Baker & Moyers ^{PO} saw

Coffman Hooper & Sheets saw

Stark & Garber ^{PO} saw

Shank & Bunday ^{PO} saw

Morland & Holler saw

Coffman Hooper & D. Rejo ^{PO} saw

Alldrough & Ferry saw

Paul for S. H. Coffman Ho & Briggs saw

Reid & Ferry saw

Hopterin & Joseph saw

Nichols for G. H. Christman & Davis saw

Williams for D. Chandler & Briggs ^{PO} saw

Effering & Ferry saw

saw . . . & M. Rogers saw

Rutherford & State ^{PO} saw

saw . . . & M. Ferry saw

Christman Ho & Newland saw

saw . . . & Roelster saw

Glenn for Christman Ho & Ferry ^{PO} saw

Deer & Losh saw

Carroll for M. Gaby & Parker saw

Merrill & for Argubright saw

Stegle & B. Smith saw

Newman & M. Ferry saw

Parker & Danner & dismissed agree

+ Orders that Thomas Logan be appointed a commissioner, to have that part of the Public Road leading from said Thomas Logan stable along the back of Peter Effinger's lot to where it intersects the road leading to Treasurersburg / part in good repair, ^{for that purpose} and he is hereby authorized to purchase so much ~~boards~~ ^{boards} as shall be necessary to remove the rocks out of said road, and to employ the necessary hands for that purpose and make report of the expenses thereof to the June Court next.

+ Orders that John Setts be and he hereby is appointed a Commissioner on the part of this County of Rockingham to carry into effect the provisions of the act of the last General assembly, ~~proposed the last session for the~~ for the location of a road from Shearers fork in this County to the termination of said road in the County of Permiatow.

On the Motion of Keigel & O'Rourke, and they having paid to the sheriff (G. H. Chrisman) \$3.50 cents, it is ordered that a warrant be granted them to keep a house of private entertainment in this County until the May Court 1835.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow morning at 11 o'clock

Wednesday the 21st May 1834

Present

Stephen Stambarger, Jacob Rust, Robert Grattan
and Augustus Walbran. J. C. Fisher

Pathfinder adms. Stacks Contain by Court

Alleging purporting to be the last Will and Testament of Andrew Snow and was again presented in Court and was further proved by the oath of Jonathan Sheppard a Witness thereto and to be Received, whereupon on the Motion of James St. Lewis one of the executors named in the said said Will, who made oath and entered into acknowledgment his own hand in the penalty of \$20.000 thereto, as the law directs, a Certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate in due form, (the will requiring no security to be given by the said executors) and it is ordered that Jacob Myant, Adams, Ward, George Roogler & John Herring, or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of said Andrew and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of James Hete (a free Negro) stating that he has lost the Register heretofore given him, and it appearing to the Court by satisfactory evidence that such is the fact) it is ordered that the Clerk furnish the said James with another Copy of his said Register as the Law directs

On the Motion of William McMahon, and he having paid to J. H. Hoptkens deputy Sheriff, \$18 the tax (imposed by Law) it is ordered that a License be granted him to keep an Ordway at two hours in this County until the May Court 1835 on his entering into bond with security in the Clerk's Office as the Law directs, the Court being of the Opinion that the said William McMahon is a man of good Character, not addicted to drunkenness or Gambling, and that he will keep an orderly and useful house of entertainment,

Permit Susan Moffett

CP * Orders that the Overseers of the poor be and Parker (89 years and 6 months) old, to Lauram Merton and as the Law directs who is to have for freedom dues \$20

CP * Orders that the Overseers of the poor be and William Roadcap (son of Isaac) about 34 years old in January last, to Christian Moyers. to be learn the art and Mystery, of affarning as the Law directs. who is to have for freedom dues \$20

Kings adms. McMahon he doeth

The defendant, by his attorney Craven Ayer, of the writth which was read to him &c. and filed a separate General Demurrer to each Count in the declaration, in which Demurrer the Pleth joined, and the said Defendant, for further plea gave this charge and 2 ^{separate} pleas of payment, and a special plea of trespass, to which plea the Pleth attorney replied generally and gave are thereto joined, and thereupon the matter of Law arising on the said Demurrer being argued it is considered by the Court that the said Demurrer be ^{Sustained} as to the 1st Count in the declaration, ^{mentioned} and that the same be ^{overruled} as to the other Counts as to the other Counts, in the declaration, mentioned, - and for reasons appearing to the Court the Court is content at the Pleth Costs until the next Court, and leave is given the 2^d Defendant to plead a special plea or further for as adms. in Bartholomew, The Jury sworn for the trial of the Cause on Yesterday, appears in Court agreeable to their adjournment. whereupon Michael Atkock one of the Jurors is withdrawn and the rest from rendering their verdict discharge and sent ^(Court) ^{pleased} Peckham is docketed by Mr. ~~Bartholomew~~ at Bartholomew, Gent. ^{pleased} & fine and continue

Sp. et al. (for use of Starke) - D. Fisher, Jury sworn to by the
 J. J. to wit, Simon Kroger, Robert Jones, Peter Sternberg, Saml
 Smith, George S. Logan, Joseph S. Effinger, Christian Kroger
 Saml. Harris, John S. Newell, Mel S. Effinger, David W. &
 Henry Starke, who having heard the evidence, and arguments of
 Counsel, and not agreeing, ~~with the verdict~~ by Consent Robert Jones one of
 the said jurors is withdrawn, and the rest from their verdict, discharged
 and the ~~case~~ ^{case} is continued

Barlow (for Bonar) - Ref'd. By consent, Judgment for the Plaintiff
 Costs

Same (for use of Bergbryghts adm) - Ref'd. By consent, Judgment for the
 Plaintiff, Costs

Fauntleroy & Dep. Off. in Judgment set aside & paid by and Reflection
 of J. and Contina

Henry J. Gambill, Clerk of the Court, with Robert Gray his Secy.
 entered into and acknowledged their bond for the penalty of \$1000. Condition
 for the due and faithful collection and paying into the Treasury the
 taxes, on law process, in this County for the year ending the first
 day of September 1834. which bond ~~was returned to the~~ is ordered to be
 Recorded

On the Motion of Jacob Trumbo, adm of Peter Tefor, dec'd, it is Order
 that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed to examine state and settle the
 estate accounts of said Tefor, and make report to the Court,

Whitmore & Rankin, dismis agreed at the Defendants costs as
 per agreement filed

Leraven & Strick, plea of Akeldet pleaded by and Replacation of
 J. and Contina

Rutherford's adm - Child's plea filed by the Defs and leave is
 given the Defs adm attorney, to reply, ^{within next Court} and set Contina for Defendants

Packard & Crook Contina

Lewis for D. & Lewis for Contina for Defendants

Grandall & Mathis adm Contina

Mellon & Pierce Jury sworn to by the J. J. to wit, J. A. Starke, Sampson
 Deaga Mayers, Geo. Leraven, Jacob Boar, Charles Coarthers
 Paul Fisher, Wm. R. R. R., Cesar Leraven, Geo. W. P. P.

Williams to Miller. Albert B. Hamblet & James S. Brown, Verdict
for the Plaintiff, for the P^y of \$300 the att in the declaration
Mentions with interest from the 19th of ~~Oct~~ ^{Sept} 1825 till paid, & August
agreeing

Michael for P^y & Oliver Contro for Defendants (both)

Miso for P^y & Perce P^y Contro for Defendants (both)

Kyle & Roalston Office Suagant set aside payment: please
gent replication to P^y and Contro

~~Miso for P^y & Perce P^y Contro for Defendants~~

Switzer & Chrisman plea was to Suagant for the Debt in
the declaration (Mentions 2000) with interest & Costs same
equally

Thompson P^y & Whited same

Bowman for P^y & Rankin same

Allabough & McMullen same

Runkle for P^y & Fisher P^y same

Stevenson P^y & Oliver same

Saraham for P^y & Anderson same

Stagle Furry same

same Darrough same

Ponaght Leverington same

Paradies Logan Jr same

Dover Adams for P^y & Dover same

Mitchell & Dover same

Reid Gordon same

same Robertson same

Sterting & Furry same

Reid Shumant sub same

same Looker same

same Granall same

same Bursey Jr P^y same

Smith & Wright, plea is answer & August confess for the debt in the declaration mentioned with interest & costs saving equity.

Same & Logan same

Belmont & Joseph & Co same

Mellor & Rankin same

Williamson & Ferry same

Smith & Co & Byrly same

Christmas & Co & Wright & Harrison same

Same ~~same~~ ^{same} (Costs) ~~same~~ ^{same} (Costs) ~~same~~ ^{same} (Costs)

Rigglesman & Mellor M & Co it is said N. A. & the act of Legislature
General Replication & Answer & Counter

Dorn & Strickland M & Co it is said N. A. & the act of Legislature

Pauls & Co of Dinkels continue

Stothard & Wright, jury sworn to try the issue to wit, Benjamin Meyer, James St. Irvine, George Leinford, Jackson Vanpelt

Philip Miller, Westly Rohr, Daniel Fisher, Samuel Harris, William Wier, Michael Wier, John Bartholomew George Overholser Verdict for the Plaintiff for \$124.60 cents Damages & August.

The Court then says August is to be ~~discharged~~ but it is agreed by the parties that the August is to be discharged by the whole amount except \$74.24 cents, and the costs of suit.

~~August is to be discharged~~

Graham & M. Mellor continue by Court

Mellor & Rigglesman continue

Dorn & Campbell continue

Irvine & Ohio plea is answer & August confess for the debt in the declaration mentioned with interest & costs (saving equity)

Rankin & Gordon continue

Pharmer & Samuels continue for Defendant

Graham & P. Mellor continue by Court

~~discharge is suppressed~~
Irvine & Mellor continue

Ordered that the Court do adjourn until the third Monday in June next

[Signature]

Virginia to wit

At a Court held for the County of Rockingham the
1st day June 1834. (being the third Monday in June 1834).

Present

Joseph Leramus, Jacob D. Williams, George Clarke
and Jacob Runk J. F. Smith

A list of Conveyances and other writings as set forth to Record
in the Clerk's office of the said County from the first to the
31st of May 1834. (both days included) was returned into Court
by the Clerk thereof, and being examined by the Court, is
ordered to be entered on the Minutes, and a copy thereof be
posted up at the door of the Court House of said County, which
is in the words and figures following to wit,

Deed for land to Austin Bryan to A. McIlvey in trust for Jacob Spangler.

Bill of sale for Personal estate David Faddy to William Fether Jr.

Deed for land John J. Salvage to George Salvage.

Deed for land Daniel Good to Joseph Fether

Deed for land same to Jonathan Fether

Deed for land same to Adam Fether

Deed for Personal estate for Livingston to Thomas Clark in trust for F. Leramus.

Deed for land Margaret Black to Thomas Lowry.

Deed for land John West Jr to John West Jr.

Deed for land John Starn to David Starn

Deed for land John Smithman to John Shumard.

Deed for land Jacob Stover to Christian Stover

Deed for P. estate Jacob Rife to Henry in trust for Samuel Bourne

Deed for land John Caldwell to David Steele in trust for Richard Barker

Deed for land James Stald to George Leramus.

Deed for land Burrows M. Henshaw to A. McIlvey in trust for Isaac Stordish

Deed for land Joseph Chis to David Steele in trust for George Chis

Deed for land Daniel Roalston to Isaac Long

Deed for land Geo. W. Christmas (Cousin) to William Starn and for S. P. Long

Deed for land same to Henry Carson

Deed for land same to John Wilson (for R. Carter, land)

- found Order for said Christian Love to Tobias Beard
- not found Order for said Michael Stover to Abraham Williams &c
- do Order for said ... same to John Cowan
- found Order for said Samuel Coote to Thomas McCulloch.
- not found Order for said George Westcott to James Hall in trust for James Sair
- do Order for said Jacob Richwind to George Meffett &c
- do Order for said Joseph Baxter to David May.
- do Order for said Abraham Stufferman to Michael St. Harris.
- do Order for said George Leraford to James Hall.
- do Order for said Cordelia St. to James Hall (releasd)
- do Order for said Richard Moore to John Cowan.
- found Order for said Philip Feredought to John St. Miller
- found Order for said Adam Studlow to Daniel Mathews Sheriff
- not found Order for said Daniel Mathews Shepp to Adam Trough
- not found Order for said Mary Brock to Joseph Bellman
- X Order for ^{P. estate} Robert Lyette to J. M. Gambell in trust for Coffman Hooper
- not found Order for said Arch. W. Sturton to Richard Wrigfield
- do Order for said Christian Small to Henry Small.
- X Order for P. estate A. Shannon to M. McCausland in trust for J. McCausland.
- not found Order for said John Chrisman to Adam Ferret.
- do Order for said A. Ferret to J. W. Henry in trust for John Chrisman
- do Order for said Christian Everold Adam Ferret
- do Order for said Martin M. New P to David Bowerman.
- Belusion & Dentalo on an appeal disimpr. agree
- Smiths and J. Rankin on appeal as to t. centies

also Est. S. 21 June

Order that Jacob Blor be appointed Surveyor of present No on the Nakes Creek Road which runs in this County in the room of George Aubry, and that he have for his help all the Tithables at the following places to wit Michael Shulan, Jacob Adams Blor, George Eppert, George Deas & William Smith and it is further ordered that so much of any road as crosses the hands of said Michael Shulan & Blor, to work on any other road be resumed, and it is ordered that the Clerk

make the alterations in said deed agreeable to this order

On the Motion of Peter Zetty it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the Guardians accounts of said Peter Zetty as Guardian of Martin Arnes and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Daniel Moyer, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the Guardians accounts of said Daniel Moyer as Guardian of Sally Arnes. and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Isaac Long, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine ~~and~~ state ~~the~~ accounts of said Long as Guardian of Barbara Arnes and make report thereof to the Court

On the Motion of Joseph Barton, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of William Gunkle dec. with the said Joseph Barton the executor and make report thereof to the Court

Ordered that Henry Philips be appointed Surveyor of Precinct N^o 1. on Gerkers Mill Road in the town of Daniel Gerkers resigned

The appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Jacob Paul deced. was returned and examined and ordered to be recorded

The appraisment bill of the estate of Catharine Gordon dec. was returned & ordered to be recorded.

On the Motion of Reuben Moore, who owns the land on both sides of Smiths Creek and is desirous to build a saw mill & other water works on his said ~~land~~ ^{land}, it is ordered that Albert of Adyrod-Barre be

awards him according to law to establish the same, which writ is to be directed to the sheriff of this County and to be executed on the Saturday before July Court next. Returnable here at the next Court.

Abellment of the estate accounts of Jacob Thaw and was return and examined by the Court and ordered to be paid

An appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Reuben Proff and were return and ordered to be returned -

On the Motion of William Parks who with Frank Klein his security entered into and acknowledged bond in the penalty of \$900. and made oath thereto as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration in the estate of Michael Moyer and in due form with the last will of said Moyer thereto annexed, which will was proved & admitted to record at May Court last, and it is ordered that Philip Souders, Jacob Fink, Frank Dove and Martin Whetzel, or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of said Michael Moyer and make report thereof to the Court

Copy will for Parks, made out 42.05

Abraham Malliaros
Ordered that George Malliaros be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 14, on the Stage Road in the room of Jacob D. Malliaros
resigned

Copy made 15 Sept 24

Wallace Malliaros
Ordered that Wallace Malliaros be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 1 on the Kiesel town Road in the room of John Shoemaker
resigned

Copy made 24 Sept 24

Harry Shoemaker
Ordered that Harry Shoemaker be appointed Surveyor of Precinct No. 8 on North Mountain Road in the room of Daniel Marrow
resigned

Copy made 24 Sept 24

Bowman P. Harrison on a summons to show cause why a road shall not be established agreeable to the report of the Surveyors the said Defendant appears in Court, and by his attorney praying relief of a good reason, which is granted him as the law directs, which is to be directed to the sheriff of this County and to be executed on the Wednesday before July Court next

unt. of

Returned here at July Court Next

On the Motion of Richard Marsh, it is ordered that
 (C) Richard P. Felt be appointed a commissioner to examine
 CP the state and settle the accounts of of said Marsh as Guardian
 of the children and heirs of Thomas Moor and make
 report to the Court.

CP & del^d 10
 E.S.S.
 21. June
 + And that Matthew Sykes be appointed overseer of present
 No 9 on the Road leading to The denstuney in the room of
 + Joseph Manly. Negro

Settlement of the estate accounts of Abraham (Real
 C) Donahoe and was returned and examined by the Court &
 ordered to be received

+ And that William Kite be appointed Surveyor of
 CP & del^d 21.
 E.S.S.
 June
 Present No 12 on the The denstuney Road in the room of
 + George Boughner. Negro

+ And that John Connor be appointed Surveyor of
 CP & del^d 21.
 E.S.S.
 June
 Present No 2 on the ^{Mapasuffe Gap} Road in the room of Michael
 Remondet deceased

+ And that Adam Layman be appointed Surveyor of
 CP & del^d 21.
 E.S.S.
 June
 Present No 3 on the Mountain Valley Road, in the room
 of George Marty Negro

CP. C Report of the way for a New Road from the County line
 of Shanandoah, to the Mountain Valley Road. Near the
 house of Lewis Fitch, was returned into Court by the Surveyor
 and the Court having duly examined the same, and there
 being no objections to said Road. It is ordered that the
 said Road be established agreeable to the said report. and
 it is further ordered that the Marcus Thomas be appointed
 Surveyor thereof, whereas (in so contains one Present) who is with
 the horses ~~being~~ heretofore to be allotted thereto) open work
 the thence and keep the same in good repair, road to be
 open 20 feet wide only.

Copy made out of this into the
 paper to be given to the Surveyor when
 horses is allotted

Ed. 1848
Sept. 24. It is ordered that Michael Sellars be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 8 on the stage road in the room of David Harris on resign.

It is ordered that the certificate of the poor be given to John Fifer son of Benjamin Fifer, as was by an order the 12th day of October last, to Isaac Wear, to learn the trade of all wages makes as the law directs, who is to receive for freedom dues \$20.

Ed. 1848
Sept. 24. It is ordered that William Smith be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 8 on the Rock Gap road, in the room of William Porter resign.

Ed. 1848
Sept. 24. It is ordered that Daniel Wren be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 1 on the Port Republic road, in the room of George Determan resign.

Ed. 1848
Sept. 24. A report of the way for a new road, from the County line of Shannassaw to the plain Mills, was returned into Court by the Surveyor, and the Court having duly examined the same, and there being no objections to the opening the said road, it is ordered that the same be established agreeable to the said report of Surveyor, and it is ordered that George Determan be appointed Surveyor of the said road, and with the title appointed to work on the said road, open work thereon and keep the same in good repair &c. (the present hands hereafter to be added) &c.

Copies are to be sent to the owners, when the hands are allotted. &c. &c. &c.

On the Motion of Patrick Dougherty, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100 and made oath therein as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on ~~the estate of~~ the estate of Michael Dougherty and incorporated in due form.

Ed. 1848 On the Motion of William M. Scott and he having paid to George W. Christian Deputy Sheriff \$250 cents the tax imposed by law, it is ordered that a license be granted him to keep private entertainments in this County until the May Court 1849.

Ed. 1848 On the Motion of Daniel Mathews Sheriff of this County Jacob A. Mitchell is admitted his deputy, who thereupon appears in Court and took the several oaths of office as the law directs, the Court being of the opinion that he is a

man of strictly probity and good demeanour.

CP + And that Daniel Whistler be appointed Surveyor of the new N. 3 or the stage road in the room of John Larrain Nerega

CP On the Motion of ^{James of Reuben Profts cler} Elected J. Williams, it is ordered that Joseph Menzies be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the accounts of said Reuben Profts as Guardian of the orphan Children of Henry Profts cler and make report to the Court

CP On the Motion of Mr. George Williams & Mr. Gaby. it is ordered that a license be granted them, to hold a Spectacular display in this County, until the May Court 1835. the Court being of the opinion that the place where the applicants have desired is a proper and fit place for that purpose -

CP On the Motion of John Dentels, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state & settle the estate accounts of Daniel Dentels cler with the said John the exec and make report to the Court.

CP On the Motion of Martin Marty executor of Sebastian Marty cler. it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Sebastian Marty cler and make report to the Court

CP (for Coffman Bond) Salvage & Martin P. upon a Notice on a Delin Bond. taken from & execution awarded

CP (for Coffman Bond) Martin P. same

CP + And that the Governor of the Poor and William Brown (who was born the 11th of March 1828.) to Daniel Botto to learn the art of agriculture as the Law directs, who is to receive for freedom cler. \$20

+ John W. Campbell, from us on his hand. resigned the office of Commissioner on the road across the Penobscot Mountains which to which office he was appointed by the act of the

last agency. On which resignation is made to be Pertaps, of Record

+ Ordered that Adam Armentrout be appointed Surveyor of Parish
 St. V. on the old furnace road in the town of Philip Miller
 resigning

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to morrow
 morning at 11 o'clock

Leonard

Tuesday the 17th of June 1834.

Present

Pearcy Harrison, Joseph Leaven, George M. Kemper, Richard P. Fletcher,
 Jacob D. Williamson, Jacob Hanks, Jacob Miller, George Clarke,
 Samuel H. Lewis, Augustus Waterman, Christian Horn, Steven Hanks,
 Jacob Runk, Reuben Moor, Charles C. Spier, Isaac Thomas, & John Blair &
 Robert Gallows Jr.

Ordered that, William Rice, John Blair & John Funchouser

be appointed Commissioners to let to the lowest bidder the opening
 and keeping in good repair the road up dry river pass for the term
 of 3 years from the date of the Contract, the said Commissioners and
 to take bond with good security of the said undertaking in the penalty
 of \$300 payable to the Justice of this County for the term being, and
 their successors for the faithful performance of the said Contract, and
 that they make a ^{monthly} report of the
 state of the road to the Court
 as directed by law.

On the Motion Jacob Stray and for Reason appearing to the Court
 it is ordered that the said Jacob Stray be exonerated from the Revenue
 County and Parish dues for his Stegion Frank and Sally from the
 date here of

On the Motion of Jacob D. Williamson, and for Reason
 appearing to the Court it is ordered that he be exonerated from
 the payment of Revenue Taxes, County and Parish dues for his
 Stegion Melch and Dolly from the date here of

On the Motion of Simon Nichols, and for Reason appearing to
 the Court, it is ordered that he be exonerated from the payment
 of County & Parish dues from the date here of

On the Motion of Henry Hanks, and for Reason appearing
 to the Court it is ordered that he be exonerated from the payment of revenue
 County & Parish dues for the year his Stegion named Maria
 from the date here of

Or ams that the sheriff return of the poor bond Jacob
Hinkley, 14 years old the 15 October next to Abraham

(CP) Ordered to learn the trade of a shoemaker as the bond acts
+ who is to receive for freedom dues \$20.

Edwara M. Smith Deputy Sheriff for Daniel Mathias Sheriff
+ returned a list of Delinquents and insolvents in the County Levy
for 1833. which was examined and allowed by the Court and
ordered to be Certified

On the Motion of Philip Warren, and for reasons appearing to
the Court. It is ordered that he be exempted from the payment of
County & parish taxes from the date hereof

Or ams that Peter Good be appointed Surveyor of Precinct
No 1. on Stephen Wall Road, in the room of William Dunslop
resigned

Or ams that Peter Stolzenberg be appointed Surveyor of Precinct
No 3 on Procks Gap Road, in the room of John Quinn resigned

Or ams that John Stornas be appointed ~~Surveyor~~ Surveyor of
Precinct No on the Road leading by Custer Mills to Procks
Gap, in the room of Joseph Showalter resigned

On the Motion of Benjamin S. Dycker, and for reasons
appearing to the Court. It is ordered that he be exempted from
the payment of County & parish taxes from the date hereof

Heran Mathy, John M. Stephen & William L. Harris Deputies
for Daniel Mathias Sheriff, returned a list of Delinquents and
insolvents in the County Levy for 1833. which was examined
& allowed by the Court and ordered to be Certified.

John Messing & other Commissioners appointed to superintend
the building the New Court of this County. made a report
+ of their proceedings, which was examined and received by
the Court and ordered to be entered filed amongst the records
of the Court.

Merry J. Gambell agent for the County produced in Court an
account for of his agency for the two years ending this day.

which account was examined and reviewed by the Court, and ordered to be filed amongst the Records of this Court.

For Reasons appearing to the Court, (a Majority of the Justices being present) it is ordered that when this Court adjourns it will adjourn to meet in July Next at the New Court, ~~house~~ of this County in the town of Harrisburg.

Smith (for Hall) & McMahon & upon a Notice on a Daily bond
It is ordered that the execution be awarded

H. Shells & Ferry &c. same

A Majority of all the acting Magistrates of this County being present, the Court proceeds to appraise the County levy for the year 1834. which year commences at December Court 1833 a statement where of is as follows (to wit,

Copied & signed to E. B. Smith	To Robert Gray attorney for the Commonwealth for his services for the ensuing year	\$100.00
	" Harry J. Gambill Clerk for his services for same year	50.00
	" Daniel Mathews Sheriff for Ditto	60.00
	" Peter Brecht Jailor Ditto	50.00
	" same for keeping the Court house for one year from the date hereof	55.00
	" for Compensation to survey persons for work done on the public Roads for sign boards, for gun powder & expenses, and for the pay of the several Surveyors of the public Roads as per Claims allowed (estimated)	553.32
	" Newton Moore Constable as per account	9.45
	" Isaac Harshby Coroner Ditto	15.00
	" Peter Brecht Ditto	3.18
	" Michael P. Effinger Ditto	14.50
	" Thomas Logan Commissioner for work done to a road as per Certificate	13.00
	" Joseph Maury a Commissioner as per account	65.25
	" Jacob Stansbarger Ditto	36.26
	" Daniel Stenton Ditto	38.81

amount carried over

\$1063.77

amount Brought over

88063.99.

To John Murray, P. Harrison, David Minter, Jacob
Rush & Isaac S. Perrybaker, the Commissioners to
superintend the building the New Court, be and to be
divided amongst themselves in such proportions as they
shall think proper. 150.00.

" Said John Hersey others the Commissioners of the Court house, to complete the said Court house and for steps thereto as per estimate.

3/082. 818.

Suppose amount

\$3126.65 *

Sheriff Commins, P.

246.65

~~3373.30~~

2

By 4819 Tables at 70 cents.

3373.30

Ordered that the sheriff collect, from each taxable person in this County ~~of taxes~~, (not exempted by Law) 70 cents, that being the County proportion for the year 1824. and out of the money arising therefrom to pay to the several persons, the claims this day allowed them, and the balance if any, pay to Henry J. Gambell the agent for the County, at the terms specified and prescribed by Law.

For Meason appearing to the Court, a (Majority of the Acting Justices being present) It is ordered to be Certified of Record that the Court will ^{hereafter} ~~grant~~ ^{no} decrees to Matadors of Spectacles + deigns to any person or persons except ~~at the~~ ^{on the} first day of ^{the} May Court to be held for this County. —

On the Motion of James Noel and he having paid \$3.75 cents
to E. H. Smith D. Sheriff the tax imposed by Law, It is ordered that a decree be granted
in favor of the said private entertainers in this County until the
May Court Next

Ordered that the Court be adjourned untill the third Monday
in July next, then to meet at the New Court house, in this
town —

P. A. Harrison

Peckay Harrison

Virginia to wit,

At a court held for the County of Rockingham on Monday the 21st day of July 1834.

Present.

Robert Meris. Michael W. Harris, Clerk

Moore & Isaac Thomas

J. H. Justice

Books of conveyances, and other writings, admitted to Record in the Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham, from the first to the 30th day of June 1834 (included) was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and being examined by the Court, it is ordered that the same be entered on the Minutes, and a copy thereof be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County, which list is in the words and figures following to wit,

Adms for personal property Isaac M. Johnson to James Hall in trust for M. H. Galy

Adms for land Abraham Lincoln to Jacob Goharian

Adms for land Benjamin Hoover to Christian Hoover

Adms for land Augustus Matheson and to Isaac S. Perry Baker

Adms for land David Kyle to James Kyle

Adms for land Marshall Bright to Daniel Flood

Adms for land George M. Peper to John Thornton

Adms for land John Thornton to J. Kerney in trust for Geo. F. Effinger

Adms for land Jas. Peckering to Samuel Brown in trust for George Sharw. (Copy)

Adms for land George Haugh to Margaret Doubt

Adms for land Jacob Mello to Christian Small

Adms for land Samuel Coffer and to George Sharw.

Adms for land John W. Goad to John Knotter

Adms for land Samuel Burkholder to John Frymoyer

Adms for land Harry Sheffer to John B. Sheffer

Adms for P. estate Nelson Rogers to R. P. Fletcher in trust for M. Effinger

An article of agreement between Philip Deal & Abraham Deal

Adms for P. estate, for Baker to R. P. Fletcher in trust for A. Smith

Adms for for land John Bryan to Geo. Gibbons

Adms for land Bayne Bryan to same

- 66 P. estate
- + Adm for ~~land~~ John Step Jr to D. Sager in trust for Geo. Sager
 - X Adm for P. estate for Marshall to H. J. Hambro in trust for State of Maryland
 - X Adm for Adam Williams Green to Geo. (Stacy) Williams
 - not found Adm for land Thomas Meadows to John Emory
 - found Adm for ~~land~~ land George Connor to Thomas Meadows
 - not found Adm for land Thomas Meadows to Voluntes (Reed)
 - do Adm for land from Lamm Hall to Christopher Burnes
 - do Adm for land Daniel Mathews to George Setts
 - found Adm for land . . . David . . . to Samuel H. Smith
 - X Adm for P. estate John Stacy to Jo. Collins in trust for Wilson Green
 - not found Adm for land John Thomas to Levi Sharw
 - do Adm for land Levi Sharw to M. Effinger in trust for John Thomas
 - X Adm for P. estate Adam Smith to D. Sager in trust for George Lamb
 - + Adm for P. estate Geo. Byrd to L. H. Hall in trust for Mary Herron

Frances Burcholder over 14 years of age, and orphan of Jacob Burcholder and came into Court and made choice of Harriet South as her guardian, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100. Considered as the law directs

On the Motion of John Cowan, who entered into and acknowledged bond with security in the penalty of \$12.00 and made oath before the law clerk, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters on the estate of Grace Layton dead in due form, and it is ordered that Grace Thomas, Peter P. Harty, Daniel Pickering and John M. Hardy or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of said Layton and make report to the Court

George A. Leopold this day produced Credentials of his Ministers and also of his being in Regular Communion with the Lutheran Reformed Church, took the oath of fidelity to the same, and with William G. Thompson & Abraham Partridge his Ministers entered into and acknowledged a bond in the penalty of \$1500

Motion

Conceded as the law directs whereupon an ^{order} Testimonial is
 signed there in due form

By consent, the settling of the estate accounts of Henry
 Smith and, which has laid over since November Court 1879 &
 is ordered to be Recorded

On the Motion of John McCannan executor of Henry Sepe
 and it is ordered that Jacob Rush be appointed a Commissioner
 to examine said and settle the estate accounts of Henry
 Sepe and make report to the Court

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of
 Jacob Nease and was presented in Court and was proved by the
 oaths of Henry Cuffe, Henry McCullough & Annie Byrd &
 witnesses thereto, & ordered to be Recorded, whereupon John Black
 the executor named in said will appeared in Court, and relinquished
 his right to qualify as such which is ordered to be entered of
 Record

Ordered that John Davis be appointed guardian for his son
 James Davis, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of
 \$200 as the law directs

On the Motion of Lero May executor of Evan Thomas
 deceased, it is ordered that Jacob Shavallie, George Shavallie
 John Christman & Norton Linn ~~and~~ or any three of them being
 first sworn, do appraise ~~the~~ that part of the estate of
 said Evan Thomas and left to his Widow during her life &
 make report to the Court,

On the Motion of Senelan Kyle it is ordered that Richard
 P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine said and
 settle the accounts of Dorcas Howell, as Guardian of said
 Senelan Kyle and make report to the Court

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of John
 Berry and was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of
 Abraham Brassman and John Bowman two Witnesses thereto
 and ordered to be Recorded

and on the Motion, John Henry & Abraham Peery, exors
 named in the will of John Peery decd. who enter into
 bond with security in the penalty of \$3,000, and make
 oath thereto, as the law directs, a Certificate is granted them
 for obtaining approval thereof in due form, and it is ordered
 that Joseph Lermon, Jacob Showalter, David Skiles &
 Christian Barranman, or any 3 of them being first sworn
 do appraise the estate of said Peery and make report to the
 Court

Rev. of C. Richard P. Fletcher & James Charles Commissioners of the
 Review for this County is hereby allowed of 5 days each for
 their services for the year 1834. which is ordered to be Certified

Harrison & Bowman & on behalf of Aqueduct. Bowman

By court certified for the Defendants

Committee to Jacob Beard &

same to Geo. Tulwitt & on Recognizance for members
 of the grand

designed by order of the attorney for the Committee

Settlements of the estate accounts of Layton Mary decd.

Adam Blow decd, Elias Whitman decd, Jesse Magill decd
 Margaret Perkey decd, and Samuel Roden decd, were
 returned, and examined by the Court, ^{the objections being made, were} & severally ordered to
 be Record

Settlements of the Guardian accounts, of Richard Marsh

for Thomas Moore Chelam, of John Argalright, for William
 Kesler & of Jacob Richardson for Jacob Scoop, were
 returned and examined by the Court and ^{no objections being made were} ordered to be Record

On the Motion of Jeremiah Harsbarger, and he having
 paid to Edward S. Smith \$3.75 cents, it is ordered that a
 license be granted him to keep private entertainments at
 his house in this County until May Court next

On the Motion of Williams Good, an apprentice to Williams Fisher, and for Reasons appearing to Court, it is ordered that the said Williams Fisher be summoned to appear here at August Court Next to show Cause if any he can why the said Williams Good shall not be taken away from him, in the Reasons directed by Law.

On the Motion of Rebecca Good, an apprentice to Henry Perce and for Reasons appearing to the Court, it is ordered that the said Henry Perce be summoned to appear here at August Court Next to show Cause if any he can, why the said Rebecca Good shall not be taken away from him, in the Reasons directed by Law.

~~Compromised in Henry Joseph, a party of the paper of the complaint of Moses Joseph, all the motion of the defendant.~~

from of W. Rice
Graham Esq. & Clarke D. on a Delin. bond. Notes from P.
execution awarded.

The writ of Aquod-Dammum awarded. Reuben Moore, for the establishment of a Mill and Dam, across ~~Reuben Moore~~ Smith Creek, was returned into Court with the request of the Jury thereto annexed. and the Court having duly considered the same, it is ordered that the said Mill and Dam be established agreeably to the said request.

On the Motion of Benjamin Nappelt and he having paid to George St. Chasman Deputy Sheriff \$15 the tax imposed by Law, it is ordered that a license be granted him to keep an ordinary at his house in this County, until the next May Court to be held for this County, on his entering into bond with security in the Clerks office as the Law directs, the Court being of the Opinion, that the said Benjamin Nappelt is a man of good Character, not addicted to drunkenness or gambling and that he will keep an orderly and useful house of entertainment, which is ordered to be entered of Record.

An indenture, or Deed from me and by Daniel Pickering and Henry Philip Metaling to the estate of Bathshamus Durlap, and was acknowledged by the said Philip & Pickering for and to be Recorded.

Present

Joseph Leaven, George Clarke & Jacob Rust.

Count ^{James} Joseph upon a recogny for arrears of the peace
 on the complaint of Moses Joseph. the Defendant appears in Court
 in discharge of his recogny, and the Court having heard the
 reasons and arguments of Counsel, on consideration whereof it
 is ordered that the said Defendant be discharged, and go thereof
 without any arrears against the said Moses Joseph, his
 costs by him about his Defense in that behalf expended

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until the 3rd Monday
 in August next.

Leaven

By Virginia to wit.

At about held for the County of Rockingham on Monday
 the 18th day of August 1834 (being the Third Monday)

Present

Joseph Leaven, Daniel Stenton, George Clarke &
 Augustus Wallisman S. J. Jones

Adm^{rs} of Conveyances and other writings admitted to Record in
 the Clerk's Office of the County Court of Rockingham from
 the 1st day of July 1834 to the 31. of the same Month (inclusive)
 was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and being
 examined by the Court, it is ordered that the same be entered
 on the Minutes, and a copy thereof be posted up at the
 door of the Court house of said County, which list is in
 the words and figures following to wit,

Adm^{rs} for said Peter Wear to Peter Zetter.

Adm^{rs} for said Joseph Baston to Peter Driver

Adm^{rs} for said Henry Hollinger to John Gosling

Adm^{rs} for said John Thuma to Jacob Whiseman

Adm^{rs} for P. estate Richard Rankin to James Hall in trust for Moore & Co

Adm^{rs} for said George Tealio to Noah Woolf

Adm^{rs} for said John Rowland to Alrick Head

Adm^{rs} for said John Rowland to Alrick Head

Adm^{rs} for said John Rowland to Alrick Head

Adm^{rs} for said John Rowland to Alrick Head

- found Adm for Sam Joseph Aldaphen to Thomas M. State
- found Adm for Sam Joseph Maury to William Minsborough
- not found Adm for Sam John Cyler to Amos Allright
- do Adm for Sam M. Clark to Jas Clark in trust for benefit of Debeck deprop.
- X Adm for Estate for Briggs to D. C. Byers in trust for Matthew Briggs
- not found Adm for Sam Noah Trout to William L. Thompson
- X Adm for Estate for Joseph to allow Lee in trust for Ruth Joseph
- found Adm for Sam from John Guy to Werty L. Lottentouch
- found Adm for Sam from Alexander Pairies to Abraham Pairies
- not found Adm for Sam by George Mosley to John Sybert
- found Adm for Sam John Lofler to John T. Gordon

On the Motion of Robert Hain Kempner, it is ordered that a decree be granted them to Retain special auditors in this County until the next May Court to be held for this County, the Court being of the ^{opinion} that they are persons of good ~~character~~ ^{character} place where the applicant reside, is a proper & fit place to Retain auditors

On the Motion of Jacob Ruck & John Ruck, who made oath thereto, and entered into bond with security in the penalty of five thousand Dollars, a certificate is granted them for Obtaining ^{Letters} ~~an Certificate~~ of administration on the estate of Henry Perren & reads in due form, and it is ordered that Peter Miller, Peter Bonyer, Peter Myer and Christian Argubright, or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of said Henry Perren and make report thereof to the Court

On the Motion of James Eskreap, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state & settle the accounts of said Eskreap as guardian of Joseph Bears, and make report thereof to the Court

Joseph Maury (for examr.) Thomas Mansfield, William B. Gary, ~~James Maury~~ Deal, Peter Showalter, David Smith, John Cook, George Reed, Henry Bellhimer, Jacob Lennear and John D. Moyers, Christian Coffman, Daniel Good, Peter Osher.

On the Motion of John & David Whetmore sons of David Whetmore and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said David Whetmore. and make report to the Court.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Henry Harris and was presented in Court and proved by the oath of George Hoaglin all which the Court and Court to lay for further proof

On the Motion of George Price, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$1500. and made oath thereto as the law directs a Certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of John Price (son of Black John) in due form and it is ordered that Jacob Peterfist, John Starnum, Jacob Price & Jacob Bear, or any 3 of them being first sworn, do appraise the estate of said John Price and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of Moses Sturges, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$500 and made oath thereto as the law directs. a Certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Mary Sturges and is granted him in due form and it is ordered that John Stevens, Joseph Ammentout, Henry Carver, and Jacob Roads or any 3 of them being first sworn, do appraise the estate of said Mary Sturges and make report to the Court.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of John Staynes Jr. was presented in Court and proved by the oath of Jacob Staynes & Stephen Carver two Witnesses thereto & ordered to be Read

George Hoover orphan of John Hoover and now 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of Jacob Hoover as his Guardian who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$400. as the law directs.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of David Burkhead and was presented in Court and was

proved by the oaths of Henry Blofer and Edward St. Smith two Witnesses thereto. It is ordered to be Recorded, and on the Motion of Jacob Blofer one of the executors therein named in the said Will, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$8,000 and made oath thereto as the law directs a certificate is granted them for obtaining a probate thereof in due form. Abraham Blofer the other executor named in the said Will having appeared in Court and refused to act, and it is ordered that Edward St. Smith, Benjamin Soffland

Samuel Seay, and Courten Seay, many 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of the said David Buntcholder and make report to the Court.

Fry & Parsons & Quisenberry, the Defendant was brought into Court in Custody of the Sheriff and Confessed a Judgment for \$33.02 cents with interest from the 26th of September 1828 till paid and costs, and was by the Plaintiff's attorney prayed in execution, whereupon the said Defendant appeared and set up a schedule of his estate and took the oath of an insolvent debtor, and it is ordered to be discharged if not in Custody for any other cause, the said Peter Buntcholder (who resides out of this County) by their Counsel having acknowledged notice in this case as the law directs.

On the Motion of Bryce Carnell and Melissa Smith wife of Joel Smith, and satisfactory evidence being produced to the Court, it is ordered that it be Certified that the said Bryce Carnell and Melissa Smith wife of Joel Smith are the only heirs at law of in fee to David Carnell ^{deceased}, late a private in the 12th Regiment of United States Infantry.

William purporting to be the last will and Testament of William Sherkey and was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of William D. Smith & Abraham DeJoy the Witnesses thereto and it is ordered to be Recorded, whereupon Samuel Goulet the executor named in the said Will appeared in Court, and acknowledging his right to qualify as such.

On the Motion of James T. Travis the executor named in the Will of John Maynard Jr. (this day proved) who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$2,000 and made oath thereto as the

law unto a certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form, and it is ordered, that John Barros, John Booth, Jacob Runkle & Joseph Moyers or any 3 of them being first sworn to appraise the estate of the said John Mayers and make report to the Court

Michael Toland orphan of Michael Toland and over 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of John Fester as his Guardian and it is ordered that the said John Fester be appointed Guardian for Phoebe Toland also child of said Michael Toland and who is under 14 years, who thereupon entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$400 as the law directs

An appraisement bill and sale bill of the estate of Michael Toland and were returned into Court and ordered to be Rec'd

Malden & Bennett the Defendant appears in Court, and confesses a judgment for the Debt in the declaration mentioned with interest & costs

On the Motion of William Parker, it is ordered that Francis Pope, James May and Philip Souder, be appointed Commissioners to lay off and apportion to Elizabeth May in her dower in the lands of her late husband Widow of Michael Moyers and make report to the Court

Overseer of the Poor & D. Shanks on a recognizance as the father of above born child of Catharine Smith, the said Defendant appears in Court in discharge of his recognizance whereupon by consent of the said Overseer of the Poor and the said Defendant and his security this prosecution is continued until the next Court

Ordered that Thomas Briggs be appointed Guardian of Eusebio & Narciso R. Briggs children of the said Thomas by Nancy his wife, formerly Nancy Rico, the widow of Luis Rico and, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100 as the law directs

Mellon & Irvine in Testis.

Irvine & Mellon in Testis, & for reasons appearing to the Court their suits are ordered to be continued until the next Court

On the Motion of Abraham Knapp, agent of Casper Branson and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine the estate and sell the estate & account of the said Casper Branson and make report to the Court.

Ordered that Reuben Moore & Abraham Byers be and they are hereby appointed Commissioners to survey and allot the ~~lands~~ ^{rights} to work on the New Road lately established, and such other Roads or parts of Roads immediately in the Neighborhood of said Road as shall be necessary for the more convenient working said Roads, designating from what ~~the~~ Roads or precincts the horses are taken, or the Charges Made and make report to the Court.

Good & Fisher, upon rule to show cause for the defendant not appearing at the solemnly call, for reasons appearing to the Court it is ordered that the said Good be taken away from the said Fisher and be bound by the ~~order of the Court~~ ^{to some other person}, and it is ordered that the owner of the poor bind the said William Good to John Garrett, to learn the trade of harness maker and Cabinet maker as the law directs, and who is to give the said Good for freedom dues \$20.

Rebecca Good & Henry Perce upon rule, & for reasons appearing to the Court, it is ordered that the said Rebecca Good who was formerly bound to said Perce be taken away from him, and that the owner of the poor bind the said Rebecca Good to George Shaver as the law directs, who is to have for freedom dues \$20.

On the Motion of William B. Ganey who owns the land on one side of the Shamrock River in the County of Rockingham and is Desirous of building a saw and water ^{on his said land} ~~mill~~ ^{mill}, and the dam on the opposite ^{side} of the River against ~~the~~ ^{which} he wishes to abut his dam for the purpose of working his said ~~mill~~ ^{mill} belonging to Joseph Maury, (who appears in Court and admission is made that he had been duly notified of this Motion) it is ordered that all out of ad quod Damum be awarded the said Ganey according to Law, to be directed to the Sheriff

77

of the County and to be executed on the 5 day of September
Next Returnable here at September Court Next.

An appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Harry Parley,
deceased were returned and ordered to be Recorded.

Barly for Roads / & all Mahan assigns agreed

Palmer for D. Palmer assigns agreed

Helmard v. Helmard plea of assumpsit pleaded & duplicated
pleas & fees.

Conth v. Reggeman, Not guilty pleaded. Guilty pleas & fees given
to wit Samuel Beay, James Taylor, Harry Wheelwood, Samuel Shierley,
Abraham Wright, John Bowman, Jacob Beay, Wesley Larrison and
William Payne, Jesse Malloway, John T. Gordon & David Roads.
whereupon the jury not agreeing in their Verdict. were adjourned until
to Morrow Morning at 11 o'clock

On the Motion of the executor of Joseph Brogden and, it is ordered
that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine and
state and settle the estate accounts of said Joseph Brogden and
make report thereof to the Court

Conth v. Sutherland Not guilty pleaded & fees given and costs paid

same v. Mr. Reens Not guilty pleaded & fees given & costs paid

same v. J. Roads same

same v. C. McMahon same

same v. Moors & Jeff Ball? not appearing Papers awarded Returnable
here at November Court Next

Conth v. Harry Newsum awarded

Sheld v. McMahon Continued awarded

Mellor v. B. Mellor Continued assigned agreed

Quinn v. & Newman v. continued

Kenny v. Hull v. continued

Permit Stephen Hansbarger.

Bowman & Harrison Contine

Harrison & Bowman & Contine

New Shanandoah Company & Harper on Notice Contine for Deft

Deft & doth assigns agree (both tons)

Ordnrs that the Court adjourns until to Morrow Morning
at 10 o'clock

David Hernton

Tuesday the 19th August 1834.

Present

Joseph Leavenworth, George Charles, James Hernton

George Charles & Abraham Smith

Esq. Justices

Walter Davis Jr. John Gordon &

apth

Jam^s Davis son of Jam^s Davis and
and John Davis son of Robert Davis and

In Charge

ran 40
c. 28.

This Cause came on to be heard by Consent as to the Plffs and
the Defendants Jam^s Davis on the 19th day of August 1834 and
the Defendant John Davis (as to whom there was an Order of
publication and which Order it appears to the satisfaction of
the Court has been duly executed) having failed to enter his
appearance according to law, and the rules of this Court the
bill filed in this suit, is therefore taken for confessed as to him
whereupon the argument of Counsel being heard, the Court
doth adjudge Order and decree that Abraham Smith (North
River) Robert M. Hyle and Jacob Starnberger be appointed
Commissioners to go upon the lands mentioned in the bill, and
divide the same, into two equal parts, according to quantity
quality and improvements, and having done so, to apportion and
deliver possession of the part, which shall remain the lands of
the s^d Walter Davis Jr to the said Walter Davis Jr, and it is
further Order and decreed that the said Commissioners do
survey and value the small field on the North side of the
Creek, in the bill mentioned, valuing the same in payment
to be made as follows, one third in six months, one third

in twelve months, thereafter, and one third in two years from the expiration of the said six months, and the Court doth further adjudge and decree, that said Commissioners do make abstract of their proceedings under this decree, to the next Court to be held for this County

- ✓ Pickering & Roark Contemns
- ✓ Mellen & Mellen desists agrees
- ✓ Helmer & Helmer Contemns by Court
- ✓ Young & Pochon & Peper Contemns
- ✓ ~~Young & Pochon~~ & ~~Peper~~ Contemns
- ✓ Showalter Infant & Beggator Contemns for award
- ✓ Smith exec & Harris & Contemns for award
- ✓ same & same same
- ✓ Nichols & Rader Jr Contemns by Court
- ✓ Grandle & Mathews desist Contemns
- ✓ Rutherford exec & Blair Contemns for debt
- ✓ May & Rader Contemns for the Plaintiff

An appraisment bill and Sale bill of the estate of John Parley
✓ Decree were returned for same to be Recorded

- ✓ Leaven & Meritt Contemns for Defendants
- ✓ Menton & Christman Contemns

✓ Michaud for D) & Chew plea w^o & Suarsh Confirms for Debt in
✓ the Debt (Menton with interest Horte (savings society))

~~Report for N. Rice) & Nixely & P. paper not to be returned offering the debt
set aside for a new hearing & replication & offer for Contemns~~

- ✓ Effinger & Bentsholden P^o Offer Suarsh set a side paper & replication
Offer and Contemns
- ✓ Moffett & Corb P^o same
- ✓ Rutherford & J. Shue P^o same
- ✓ Refs exec & Christman P^o same
- ✓ Scott for L. D) & Rogers P^o same

Sherly & Looker Offens. Inquest ret aredo prapmt Genl Reflected & Spun are Contina	
Same & Stanton D	Same
Same & M. Stanton	Same
Kyger & Peirkey D	Same
Bear as adm for & Bears	Same
Fry & OBayan	Same
Stann & Jernsing	Same
Clarke & Furry	Same
Stover & Byerly D	Same
Burackes & Shew	Same
Rice & Mellow	Same
Milrow (for Pollock D) & Looker	Same
Pollard (for Linder) & Furry	Same
Blain & Green D	Same
Erred (for M. Rice) & Rogers	Same
Curren (for M. L.) & Linder	Same
Burmyan & Merrigord	Same
Holmings & Chrisman	Same
Stewart & Peirkey D	Same
Chrisman & Chrisman	Same
Armentrout & Furry	Same
Flood & Furry D	Same
Rogers (for J. Green) & W. Mahan	Same
for Powell (for D. L.) & Logan	Same
Kohr & Furry	Same
Comd. & Regglerman, the jury impanelled and sworn for the trial of this Cause on yesterday appears in Court agreeable to their agreement to return that the Deft is guilty & answer with 50 cents, and Inquest are accordingly	

Bourman adm - Logan. the Defendant appears in Court and
 C confesses a judgment for the debt in the declaration mentioned with
 interest & costs.

C the appraisement bill & sale bill of the estate of Margaret Pinkle
 deceased was returned and ordered to be recorded

C Pinkle (for Geo. Canoe) & Fisher vs on a Notice process on a Delin bond
 H. Notice process & execution awarded

C Pickering & Looker vs wife, Controversy for the Plaintiff

C Combs & Smith vs H. General repudiation & J. H. & Controversy

C Rutherford adm & Carthage. Jury sworn to try the issue to wit:
 Thomas Looker, George Bear, William Wheeler, Samuel Harrison
 Stephen Tindal, John Brown, George Shep, William Harper,
 Alexander Ingham, William Ferry, Daniel Fisher & Charles Fawcett.

who retired from the bar to consider of their Verdict and after
 some time returned into Court and declared that they could
 not agree, whereupon they were adjourned until to Morrow
 morning at 10 o'clock.

C Logan (for exec of Smith) & Hagar vs the Defendants appears in Court
 on a Confession of judgment for the Debt in the writ mentioned, with
 interest & costs (execution to lay until October Court starts)

C Rutherford adm & ^{Spencer} ~~Carthage~~ Controversy by Combs.

ed Wm P. Dennis & M. Dennis. In Debt on the Motion of the Defts.
 by their Counsel. It is ordered that Zachariah Crawford, attorney
 for the Defendants in this case show cause on to Morrow
 at 10 o'clock if any he can why he shall not be found according
 to law for seeing his now attendance.

sp. That (for Rutherford) & Logan vs upon a Notice on a Delin bond
 H. Notice process & execution awarded

C H. Chairman H. & Harrison vs same

C H. Taylor (for Rice) & Carr vs same

C H. Harrison & Logan vs same

J. M. Rice & Doro. plea was & Jurymen Confess for the Debt in the
 Declaration Mentions with interest & Costs (same) equity!

as Taunton & Sep of	same
Bello & Bello	same
Thompson & Hancock	same
Coffman & Ho & Sheets	same
Kear & Garwin	same
Shank & Burray	same
Morland & Holler	same
Coffman Hooper & Rife	same
Allabough & Furry	same
Paul for Coffman Ho & T. Briggs	same
M. Rice & M. Furry	same
Hopkins & Joseph	same
Keely & Rains	same
Williams & Briggs	same
Effinger & M. Furry	same
same & Rogers	same
Burkeford & Hild	same
same & M. Furry	same
Chisman Ho & Roalston	same
Bluff for J. Chisman & M. Furry	same
Hyle & Roalston	same
Carroll for M. Furry & Perkey	same
Manger & Argubright	same
Heyle & Smith	same
Newman & M. Furry	same
Perry Bath & Moyer & Contine	
Chisman Ho & Newman	Contine

* Henry J. Gambell Clerk of the Overseers of the poor of this County
 made a report in pursuance of the act of assembly passed the 19th

of February 1819, stating the situation of the poor on the parish, their
 names, situation & when report was examined by the Court,
 and orders to be filed amongst of the Records of this Court.)

Henry J. Gambell agent of the Overseers of the poor, reported
 an account of the expenses for the Maintenance of the
 poor on the parish, for the year ending the 30th of June 1834,
 and also of the expenses of the Maintenance of Bastard
 Children for within the year aforesaid, which accounts was
 examined by the Court, and excepted and orders to be filed
 amongst the Records of the Court, and it is further ordered
 that the said Gambell be allowed the sum of \$75. for his
 services for the year ending the 30th of June 1834. to be paid
 out of any funds in his hands belonging to Overseers of the poor

The Court set the following rates and prices, to be paid at all
 Ordinances, within this County, for liquors, diet, lodging, provender,
 Stables, fodder, and pasturage to wit,

for Dinner	\$0.30 cents.
" Supper	25 "
" Breakfast	25 "
" Lodging	12½ "
" Malaga Wine per quart	15 00 "
" Port wine ditto	1.00 "
" Terreriff ditto	1.00 "
" Sherry or Seshow ditto	1.00 "
" Malaga ditto	50. "
" Best spirits per half pint	25 "
" French Brandy ditto	25 "
" best Holland Gin ditto	25 "
" best Whiskey ditto	12½ "
" Peach Brandy ditto	25 "
" Elder per quart	6¼ "
" Portin per Bottle	50. "
" good Beer per quart	6¼ "
" Hay & Stabling for 24 hours	25. "
" Corn & Oats per 1/2 cwt	12½ "
" pasturage per day or 12 hours	8. "

Kings adam & McMahon, jury sworn to try the same to wit
 George Baxter, William L. Miller, William M. Davis, Samuel Harris,
 Rudolph Steg, Noah Wood, William Cherryholme, Henry Boag,
 # Richard S. Rutherford, Cyrus Black, George Loper & Oliver Sterling
 and having heard the evidence and arguments, and not agreeing
 were adjourned until to Morrow at 10 o'clock

Writing purporting to be the last will and testament of Henry
 Starnberger and was again presented in Court and fully proved
 by the oath of John Henry attesting thereto, and ordered to be
 Recorded, and on the Motion of Jacob Starnberger one of the
 executors named in the said Will, who entered into bond with security
 in the penalty of \$15,000 and made oath thereto as the Law directs &
 Certificate is granted him for obtaining approval thereof in due
 form. (Emmanuel Starnberger the other executor named in the said
 appears in Court and renounces his right to qualify as such), and
 it is ordered that Robert G. Lattin, Christian G. Lattin, Jacob
 L. Egan, & Samuel Dumble, or any three of them being first
 sworn do appraise the estate of the said Henry Starnberger
 deceased, and make report to the Court

Rutherford as adm & Carthagen, the jury impaneled and sworn
 for the trial of this suit on yesterday appears in Court,
 agreeable to their adjournment and retired from the bar to consider
 of their Verdict, and after some time returns into Court and declares
 that they could not agree, whereupon by consent William Harper
 one of the said Jurors was withdrawn and the rest, from rendering
 their Verdict discharged, and the Cause is continued until the
 next Court

Henry Smith exor agst Robert Smith &
 same agst same vs E. M. Debb.

By Consent of the parties by their Counsel, the Order referring
~~to~~ all matters in difference between them in these suits to

Richard P. Fletcher, Esq. and by like current, it is
 Ordered that all matters in difference between the parties
 in these suits, are referred to the award and final determina-
 tion of John H. Campbell, & Jacob Stambarger, whose award
 or the award, of their umpire in case of disagreement is
 to be made the judgment of the Court

~~Prothonotary~~ - Merry Controversy by Counsel for Defendant (oath)

Mr. Patry Lewis for P. - Mr. Lewis for D. plea wants to be against
 Counsel for \$25 W. H. with intent from the 20th day of
 August 1834 till paid costs of suit

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow
 morning at 10^o o'clock

R. P. Fletcher

Thursday the 21st August 1834

Present

Joseph Leaven, Richard P. Fletcher, Augustus
 Waterman & Jacob Mellen S. G. Foster

Graham & Philip Mellen the Defts pleads & replies which are
 here filed, ~~granted~~ to which the Defts replies & finally
 & open are found.

An appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Peter
 Fefer. and were returned and examined & ordered to be Recorded

A settlement of the accounts of Jas. M. Estlin as guardian
 of Joseph Bear and was returned and examined by the Court, &
 no exceptions being made to it, the same is ordered to be
 Recorded

A settlement of the estate accounts of Peter Fefer and was
 returned, and examined by the Court, and no exceptions being
 made thereto, it is ordered to be Recorded

High & Fery Clerk

Spetzler for Sharpe & N. Festin jury sworn to try the issue to wit:
 French & Duff, Samuel Sterling, George Stothow, Joseph Robt
 Robert Reed, George Radin, Joseph Lepore, Peachy Reed, Andrew
 Carrel, John Gougherty, William Ferry & Noah Berry. Verdict
 for the Plt for \$54.82 cents, with interest from 1st June 1831.
 into paid & S. agent.

King adm & McMahon the jury empanelled and sworn for
 the trial of this cause on yesterday, appeared in Court agreeable
 to their adjournment, and retired from the bar to examine of their
 Verdict and after some time returned into Court and declared that
 they could not agree, whereupon by Court A. S. Rutherford one
 of the Jurors was withdrawn and the rest from rendering their
 Verdict discharged & the cause is continued until the next term

Lincoln & Weyfield, jury sworn to try the issue to wit: Davis
 Chandler, Joseph Effinger, Peter Hensbarger, John M. Newell,
 William Sharpe, ~~William~~ ^{William} Thompson, Charles McMahon, William
 Richard, William Wheeler, Charles M. Coathran, Baldwin Gair,
 Samuel M. Dennis Verdict for the Defendant & S. agent
 accordingly whereupon on the Motion of the Plt by his attorney, the Verdict
 & S. agent rendered in this cause is set aside, and a New trial is granted him
 to have at the next term, on his paying the Costs of the present Court.

Graham & Miller Cont. Deft.

Devo & Campbell Cont. by Court

Wier for vs. Pence vs Cont. by Court

Ransom & Graw Cont. by Court

Tharsh & Samuels Conting Plaintiff

Miller for vs. Picketing plea waived & S. agent confessed for
 the Deft in the Debt mentioned with interest & Costs (saving
 equity)

Pauls adm & Burkle Cont. by Court

Roads for vs. Pedro, disrupus agree.

- (Pegglesman & Mello continues
 Thompson & Stottinger continues
 (Storn & Strickland continues
 (Starn & Sullivan continues
 (Mello & Pegglesman continues
 (Cramer for Dr. Rankin continues
 (Green & Bunkle Dr. ~~continued~~ M B set aside St. G. &
 (Jen and continues
 (Lamb & Lamb M B set aside St. G. Genl. Reflector Office
 and continues
 (Hann & Adams & Stollbrook continues
 (Graham & Mello Jury sworn to try the case to wit:
 John Mello, Benjamin Evans, Paul Curtis Christian
 Sumner, Noah Brown, Beery, Jonathan Bateman Jacob
 Bashore, William B Smith, Henry Barreche, Capt. W.
 Manaforte, Lewis Keller Cyrus Storch, Verdict for the Plff
 for \$80.97 $\frac{3}{4}$ cents Damages, with interest from the 5 of Novem.
 1832 to date, & Judgment accordingly, and on the Motion of the Deft
 by his attorney, the said Verdict of Jurors is set aside, and a new trial is
 granted him to be held at the next Court, upon his paying the
 costs of this Court.
 (Reid & Ferry Dr. 2 subs continues
 (Coffman & Co & sand continues
 (Moore & Ferry sand
 (Coffman & Ferry sand
 (Cramer for Dr. Rankin sand
 (Storn & Gray & Rankin continues
 (Reid & Robertson continues, and the Defendant for further
 pleas in this behalf pleases two Special pleas which he has here
 filed in writing, and leave is given by the Plff's attorney to reply
 to said pleas until the next Court

Reid & Robertson By counsel of the parties by their counsel
the judgment rendered in this case at May Court last is set aside
and the cause again placed on the docket, and the rights preserved.
my master, by the defendant's counsel, offers no further evidence in
this case set aside, and the defendant for further plea in this
behalf pleads two special pleas which are here filed in writing,
and leave is given to the Plaintiff's attorney until the next court
to reply to said pleas. and the cause is continued.

Orders that the Court be adjourned until the 3rd Monday
in September Next

R. P. Fletcher

Virginia to each

At about noon for the County of Rockingham, on the third Monday
being the 15.th day of September 1834.

Present
John Craven. Saml. Lewis. David Wentw Jacob
Rust and Charles C. Spear. G. H. Justice

Best of Deeds and other writings, admitted to Record in the Clerk's Office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 1st to the 31st day of August 1834. (both days included). was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and being duly examined by the Court, is ordered to be entered on the Records, and a Copy thereof be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County which best is in the words following (to wit):

Journal of Release for Saml. R. P. Fletcher to Joseph Bowman

not found. ~~Sherry~~ for land. Abraham. Miller except Jacob Sherry

found Adm. for David Courso Carter to Geo. W. May in trust for Jas. A. Hamilton
 and found Adm. for David Mary Dunsen to Jacob Dunsen do (with agreement to)

not bound. Adm. for Sams Mary Dunsan & to Jacob Dunsan po (with agreement to)

20 Adm for Lane & Co and Roalston to George Ever

80 - at Wms. for Land 5 anns to Senior Try.

found - address for David Joseph Glue to David Mathews Sheriff

found. Alfreda dau David Mathew Sheff to George Blinn

not come. Address for Sam Joseph Bougherty to Tipton Ford

found. All of Nelson. Oliver McCausland to Geo. County.

20000 for Anne Selas Stuntz to James Clarke

[illegible]

This Cause cannot as to be heard by consent of all the

parties this 15th day of September 1834. on the bill answered, exhibits and
 depositions, of evidence, and it appearing to the satisfaction of the Court, that
 all the previous necessary legal requirements, have been fully complied
 with by the Plaintiff - whereupon the arguments of Counsel being heard,
 the Court doth adjudge, order and decree, that the land premises mentioned
 in the Plaintiff's bill, being the land conveyed by Joseph Dumas and
 wife to the said William Woolf by the deed filed in this Cause, to be sold
 at Public Auction to the highest bidder on the following terms one third
 of the amount for which the said tract of land may sell (to be paid at the
 day of sale, together with the costs of sale, and the balance in two
 equal annual installments, and the Court doth hereby appoint Stephen
 Tinsaw, the present Guardian of the said Jefferson Wolf Commissions
 to sell and dispose of the said tract or parcels of land, and premises, at
 such time and place as he shall think best after having advertised
 the time and place of sale in the newspapers (if any) printed in the
 town of Harrisonburg, and if there should be no newspapers, then printed
 in the town of Harrisonburg, then upon the front door of the Court
 house of Rockingham County for at least two weeks, and at some
 public place near the premises, and that upon the payment by
 the purchaser of the same, to be paid, on the day of sale as aforesaid,
 and the purchaser, with good security or securities, executing and
 delivering to the said Stephen Tinsaw, as Commissioner aforesaid
 his bonds or single bills, for the remaining payments for which the
 said Dumas sells, as aforesaid, the said Stephen Tinsaw, as Commissioner
 aforesaid, execute and deliver to the purchaser a Deed with special
 Warranty for said land and premises, and that he retain out of the
 monies received by him as aforesaid, and pay over to the persons
 entitled thereto, the costs, of prosecuting this suit, which have not
 heretofore been paid, by the plaintiff's attorney, - and it is further
 adjudge ordered and decreed, that the said Stephen Tinsaw retain
 of the proceeds of the sale of said land as aforesaid, after deducting
 the costs as aforesaid, one sixth in full for his wife Dower therein
 taking, or retaining such proportion of the cash and deferred
 payments, and that the said Stephen Tinsaw as Commissioner
 aforesaid, receive, collect, and retain as Guardian of the said Jefferson
 Woolf the residue of the proceeds of the sale of the land
 aforesaid, - and it is further, ordered, adjudge and decreed, that

before the said Stephen Tindal shall enter upon, or take upon himself, the performance of the duties aforesaid as Commissioner aforesaid, he shall execute bond with sufficient security in the penalty of \$700. according to the provision and requirements of the act of the General Assembly of Virginia passed the 27th day of February 1828. entitled an act, to amend and readen into one act the several acts, concerning Guardians, Orphans, Curators, infants, Masters & apprentices passed February 18th 1819. and for other purposes. whereupon the said Stephen Tindal with Christian Moyer _____ his security, appeared in Court and executed, and acknowledged their bond agreeable to the aforesaid Order, which is orans to be filed amongst the papers

On the Motion of Daniel Hysa son of Jacob Hysa and it is Orans that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed to examine and settle the estate accounts of s^r. Jacob Hysa and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of the adm^r of Jacob Hysa and it is Orans that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine and settle the estate accounts of s^r. Hysa and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of the administrators of Henry Penn and it is Orans that ~~Joseph Hysa~~ ^{Joseph Hysa} be appointed a Commissioner to examine and settle the accounts of Philip Roy and with the said adm^rs the said (Penn being the ~~executor~~ ^{executors} of said Philip Roy and make report to the Court.

On the Petition of John Roller & for a Road from the Stage Road, beginning on the lands of Jacob Whitte and from thence, as set forth in the petition to intersect the Swift run Gap Road at Charles Hysa, it is Orans that Solomon Huffman, Joseph Bywater, Peter Shanks and Abraham Huffman, or any 3 of them being first sworn, be appointed to view the said way and make report to the Court of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same.

C On appraisment bill of the land of Christian Hyger Jr and
was ~~ordered~~ ordered to be ~~read~~ read

Advers of emancipation from John Sellar to his Negro
Woman Mary was presented in Court and acknowledged by
the said John Sellar to be ~~deceased~~ deceased, and it is ordered to be ~~certified~~
C that it appears to the Court that the said Negro was over
18 years of age and under 45 years, and healthy and sound.

On the Motion of Saml Bowman, who entered into bond with
security in the penalty of \$1000. and made oath thereto as the
law directs, a certificate is granted them for obtaining letters of
administration on the estate of Joseph Rife and in due form.
Q and it is ordered that Brothers Thomas Abraham Knapp
John Elms Jr. and Benjamin Mount, or any 2 of them being
first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Joseph Rife &
make report to the Court

On the Petition of Isaac Long security for Samuel Seay who
was the executor of Samuel Seay deceased it is ordered that the
said Samuel Seay be summoned to appear before the Court on the
day to show cause if any he can why he should not give
to the s^d Long additional or counter security, whereupon the said
Samuel Seay appeared in Court and acknowledged a ~~statement~~
of the notice of this Motion, and refused to give the security
as required, whereupon on the Motion of Christian Brown
who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$6.000.
as the law directs, a certificate ^{is granted} them for obtaining ~~letters of~~
the letters of a ^{Deceased} administration on the estate of the said Samuel
Seay (and in due form) with the said will annexed.

On the Motion of Jacob Rush & John Rush who entered into
bond with security in the penalty of \$2000 and made oath ^{as the law directs} thereto, a
certificate is granted them for obtaining letters of admin on the
estate of Philip Royer and (deceased now) with his last will
annexed.

Regardus of Nicy Lewis, Dickey, Geo. Harrison, Allen Colly,
Nancy W. Stapleton, Attrip. & Adam

was returned into Court and being compared with the said
+ Negros, and found only names, Copies thereof are ordered
to be furnished them ~~respectfully~~ respectively. as the
Matters agreed by law

On the Motion of the Poor, D. Shanks on a recogn. by Bondsmen Compt.
of the Pfts. and the Deft. & his Security this proceeding is ordered
to be continued until the Next Court

On the Motion David Flook, who entered into bond with security
in the sum of \$500. and made oath thereto, as the
law directs, does a Certificate is granted him for obtaining
Letters of administration on the estate of ~~said~~ Jacob Haynes
deceased in due form, and it is ordered that Reuben
Shanks, Henry Shanks, Adam Adams & David Houch, or
any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate
of said Jacob Haynes deceased and make report to the Court

Edward H. Smiths Deputy Sheriff of Darned Matthews (Return)
a List of Delinquents ~~bound for~~ in Darned taxes for 1833. which
was examined and allowed by the Court and ordered to be

Certified

On the Motion of Jacob Shanks Guardian of Michael

Mullen, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a

Commissioner to examine said estate and settle the accounts of
the said Guardian and make report to the Court

Bowman & Harrison disimp^d by order of Pfts. attorney

Harrison & Bowman on a writ of a quod a. Harman

by Court the writ awarded in this Case is ordered to be
disimp^d. at the said Defendants Costs, and Judgment accordingly

Palmer & Stogheas on appeal disimp^d agree at the Costs
of appellee & Judgment accordingly

f. Barly & Ball upon an attachment

The attachment was return'd by the Constable executed on 11. head of foot stone &c and the said Defendant not appearing altho solemnly call'd it is order'd that Judgment be awarded the Plaintiff for \$100. with interest from the 13th of June 1834 with paid and Costs, and it is order'd that the Sheriff make sale of the aforesaid attached property according to Law, and pay the money arising from the sale thereof to the Plaintiff on account of this Judgment

On the Motion of Henry Connor, and for reasons appearing to the Court, it is order'd that the said Connor have leave to take William Sellers his ward to Gustavus Schoenmaker, to learn the trade of a Taylor as the Law directs, whose upon the terms and Conditions as has been agreed upon by the parties

On the Motion of Henry Connor Guardian of Roddy Sellers. it is order'd that Jacob Runk be appointed Commissioner to examine & settle the accounts of the said Connor, and make report to the Court

Ordered that Henry Starnes be appointed Surveyor of precinct No. 1. At: Now the Swift New Gap Road in the Room of Henry Connor.

Adm of emancipation from Jacob Freese to his Negro Thomas was presented in Court and proved by the witnesses thereto to be a Negro and

Coffman & Cooper & Miller &c on a Motion on a Delin bond, Motion to prove & execution awarded

Cy Riccio & Bunnys &c same

Cy Hopkinfor &c & Love &c same

Cy Chinnison & Alloy &c same

Cy Chinnison & Co & Bowers &c same

Cy Riccio & Loothe &c same

Cy Anthony & Martin &c same

Cy Riccio & Loothe &c same

Cy Riccio & Loothe &c same

Maury upon writ of Ad quod Damnum
 for the purpose of establishing a Mill and Dam across the
 Shamandoak River, the said Writ was returned into Court with the
 inquest of the Jury thereto assigned, whereupon the said fourth
 Maury appears in Court, and consents to the said dam
 being abated against his ~~dam~~ dam as by the writ prayed for,
 Therefore, it is considered by the Court that the said Mill and
 dam be established agreeably to the said inquest of the Jury
 upon the payment of the Damages found by the Jury.

On the motion of Christian Barnum, late Guardian for
 Jefferson Mole, and for reasons appearing to the Court, it is
 ordered that the report ^{of a settlement of his account} made by N. P. Fletcher Commissioner of the
 on the 18 November 1833 be recommended to said Commissioner
 and that he allow the said Guardian the sum paid by him
 for Boarding of his said Ward, and that he allow the said
 Guardian in lieu of his charge for Boarding of his ward
 from the 21st May 1832 to 22nd July 1833. \$46.32, also the
 clerk fees & taxes on his ward's land which the said Guardian
 has paid, and not introduced in his former accounts, and make
 report thereof to the Court.

An appraisment bill of the estate of John Berry and was
 returned & ordered to be Received.

Overseers of the Poor in Joseph Baker upon a recogno for
 the father of a bare born Child of Elizabeth Merry
 the said Defendant appeared in Court in discharge of his
 recogno, and the Court having heard the evidence and
 argument of Counsel, upon consideration thereof the Court
 is of the opinion that the said fourth Baker is the father
 of the said Bartlett Child, and that the same is likely
 to become chargeable to the parish, it is therefore ordered
 that that the said fourth Baker pay to the Overseers of the
 poor of Rockingham County the sum of \$140 for the support
 of the said Bartlett Child to be paid in the following
 manner to wit \$20 on demand, and then \$20 annually
 from the date hereof until the said sum be paid or other

was examining the papers from the support of the said basket child and that he forthwith enters into recognizance with security for the payment of the said \$140. at the period aforesaid, and also pay the costs of the prosecution, and it appearing to the Court that the said Defendant is unable to give the security required by the foregoing precept, he is with the consent of the ^{attorneys for} the ^{Verdict} of the poor person^{al} to go at large without giving the security as above directed.

Prerogative.

Stephen Starnberger, George Clarke, Joseph Clark, Abraham Smith, Samuel Coote, Michael St. Harris, Robert G. Galloway.

The Court proceed to the appointment of a Commissioner for the Revenue tax for the 116th Regiment of this County for the year 1835. and the return of the Justices present being full, on the law direct, they voted unanimously for Richard P. Fletcher, whereupon it is ordered that the said Richard P. Fletcher be appointed to the said office, and that he qualify as the law directs. And the Court in like manner proceed to the appointment of a Commissioner of the Revenue tax for the 58th Regiment, and the return of the Justices present ~~and~~ being full, they vote as follows for Mr. James Clarke, Stephen S. Starnberger, George Clarke, Joseph Clark, ~~Abraham Smith~~, Samuel Coote, Robert G. Galloway and Charles C. Spear being a majority of the said Justices present and so voting, whereupon it is ordered that the said James Clarke be appointed Commissioner of said Regiment, and that he qualify as such as the law directs.

Abraham Bridges a Constable in the Beaver Lake district appears in Court and resigns his office as such, whereupon ~~it is~~ ^{ordered that} the Justices present being full, on the law direct, they vote unanimously, vote for Samuel J. Dinkels, ~~and~~ who is hereby declared to be duly elected to the said office of Constable ~~and~~ for said district, until the July Court 1835. who thereupon appears in Court, and enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$2000 conditioned as the law directs, and took the several oaths of Office, the Court being of the opinion that the said Samuel

J. Binkley is a man of honesty property and good demeanour

On the Motion of ~~George St. Lawrence~~ ~~John St. Lawrence~~
 Deputy Daniel Mathews Sheriff of the County, and for reasons
 appearing to the Court, it is ordered that his Deputy Sheriff
 have leave to amend the return made, by ~~them~~ ^{one} on the
 two executions, of Good (for the use of Mr. Rice) to Daniel
 Caldwell P. and the other of Daniel Stenow agt said D.
 Caldwell.

On the Motion of ^{Rev} George Huffman, who produces to the Court
 a Decree of his being a Minister in the Church call
 the united Brethren in Christ and having taken the oath
 of fidelity to the Commonwealth and entered into bond
 with security, a testimonial is granted him to celebrate
 the rights of Matrimony, in the State of Virginia agreeable
 to the forms and Ceremonies of his Church

On the Motion of George M. Paper agent of Archibald
 Rutherford and, it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher
 be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle
 the estate accounts of the said Rutherford and make
 report to the Court

Ordered that the Court do adjourn until the 1st Monday
 in October next

J. Bravens

Virginia To wit

At a Court held at the Court house
of Rockingham County on the 18th day of October
1834 for the trial and examination of Robert D
Hoy who was committed to the Jail of this County
on Suspicion of felony and stands charged with
feloniously Killing Margaret Smoot

Present

Peachy Harrison Abraham Smith Augustus Ely Justices
Walterman Jacob Rush & Robert Hines

The Prisoner was led to the bar in custody of the
Jailer and thereof arraigned plead not guilty and
thereupon sundry Witnesses to wit Nancy Mepick
Madison Mooney Isaac Smoot John F Effinger Abraham
Ferry Martha Sanford George Clarke Senclair
Sprinkle James Gray Mary Jordan Polly Kelly
Susan Keple & Henry Kelly were sworn and Examined
and the prisoner being fully heard in his defence
by his Counsel it is considered by the Court that
he is guilty of the offence whereof he stands
charged and for the same is byable in the Circuit
Superior Court of Law & Chancery holden for this
County and that he be remanded to the Jail
of the said Circuit Superior Court of Law & Chancery
there to remain until discharged by due course
of Law Be it remembered that on the 18th day
of October 1834 Nancy Mepick Madison Mooney
Isaac Smoot John F Effinger Abraham Ferry
Martha Sanford George Clarke Senclair Sprinkle
James Gray Mary Jordan Polly Kelly Susan Keple
& Henry Kelly severally appeared in Court and
acknowledged themselves to owe and be indebted
to his excellency Littleton W Tazewell Governor of
Virginia and his successors in office in the sum of
\$100 each to be bona of their respective Goods & Chattels

Lands and Tenements and for the use of the Commonwealth to be rendered upon this condition that of the said Harry Mepick Madison Mooney Isaac Smoot John F. Effinger Abraham Hurry Martha Sanford George Clarke Simeon Sprinkle James Gray Mary Jordan Polly Kelly Susan Kepler & Harry Kelly shall make their personal appearance on the first day of the next Superior Court of Law & Chancery to be held for the said County then & there to give evidence against Robert W. Hoy charged with killing Marga ret Smoot and shall not depart the said Court until discharged by Law then their recognizance to be void else to remain in full force

and the Court arose

Peacock Harrison

Monday to wit

At about noon for the County of Rockingham On the Third Tuesday being the 20th of October 1834

Present.

Joseph Leaven, Richard P. Fletcher, Jacob Rusk & John W. Campbell . . . E. G. Foster

A list of Deeds and other writings, admitted to Record in the Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham from the 1st to the 30th day of September 1834. (both days included). was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and being duly examined by the Court, is ordered that to be entered on the Minutes, and a copy thereof to be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County which list is in the words following.

not some
do Adm for land A. Huffman to Jacob Ryall
do Adm for land M. W. Gorman to Solomon Storer
do Adm for land M. Roalston to said
do Adm for land Richard Gurn to Christian Warole
do Adm for land Thomas Loken to Solomon Maffery
do Adm for land Jo. Huffman P to Anthony P. Huffman

- not found Adm for land Joseph Coffman P to Anthony P. Duffman
- do Adm for land same to Gabriel Payson
- X Adm for Personal estate of Rowden to Geo. Rowden in trust for M. Robertson
- not found Adm for land John Elliot P to Barker P. Murphy
- do Adm for land Jacob Carlsby Jr to Daniel Meyer
- found Adm for land Joseph Bowman to S. Bowman
- found Adm for land M. Apper P to Abner Steinko
- found Adm for land Simon Bowman to Peter Whitman
- Adm for ^{land} Jacob Basac to John Swartz
- found Adm for land John Swartz to Jacob A. Mitchell
- not found Adm for land Ephraim Woolf to John Christman
- X Adm for P. estate Isaac Stilo to Geo. Miller in trust for Jacob Springer
- Adm for land Matias Ashenard to Franklin Ashenard
- found Adm of Release for land Michael Goreb to Solomon Goreb
- not found Adm for land John Early to Charles Williams
- do Adm for land same to Rachael Bask
- do Adm for land Solomon Goreb to D. H. Gambell in trust for Jacob Roads
- found Adm for land Joseph Duffman to John Mero
- not found Adm for land George Meekab to Joseph Manzy
- found Adm for land Saw Bechtels to D. H. Gambell in trust for ^{Geo} ~~Geo~~ Burn
- not found Adm for land Abraham P. Curtis to Eli D. Gallow
- do Adm for land George W. Dinsley to John Dooker
- do Adm for land Jacob Whitset to Charles Ross Blow
- X Adm for P. estate Jas. Albright to F. Mansfield in trust for Geo. Dimean
- not found An agreement between George Shaper & S. Shaper
- do Adm for land Jacob Fry to Henry Shoemaker
- do Adm for land of Joseph Byrly to Saml. Clark in trust for Jacob ^{Burnett} ~~Burnett~~
- found Adm of Release for land S. M. Gambell to John Pearce
- found Adm for land same to Samuel Gough
- found Adm for land John D. Gough to Abraham Smith
- not found Adm for land Melly Lewis to Daniel Gilman

An appraisment bill of Sale bill of the estate of John Hyra are
were returned & ordered to be returned

On the Motion of John St. Funchouser, and he having entered
into bond with security in the penalty of \$3000, and made oath
thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining
letters of administration on the estate of John Bournan and is
granted him in due form. (Elizabeth Bournan the widow
having sworn under her hand & seal under her right to the assets
thereof, and it is ordered that said Bournan & John Knotger
Christian Coffman & Joseph Bunkholan, or any 3 of them being
first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Bournan and make
report to the Court

On the Motion George Price, and he having entered into bond
with security in the penalty of five hundred Dollars, and made
oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for
obtaining letters of administration on the estate of ~~the said~~ Mrs
Polly Pierce in due form, and it is ordered that Jacob Price,
John Warren, Jacob Price & James T. Graves, or any 3 of them
being first sworn, do appraise the estate of the said Mrs. Polly
Pierce and make report to the Court

A bill of emancipation of Hannah Abbie & to Jerry Moore
then Negroes was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of
Joseph Maury and Thomas Charles two Whelps thereto &
Ordered to be Recorded

On the Motion of Edward St. Smith, who and he having
entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$800, and
made oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted
him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of
of Peter Bunkholan and in due form, and it is ordered that
Daniel Leray, Carlos Long and Horace Loftland being
first sworn do appraise the estate of said Peter and make
report thereof to the Court

An appraisment bill, and sale bill, of the estate of Joseph Krotyer decd. were returned & ordered to be Recorded

Costs for P^r Moore on appeal, disimposed against at the Costs of the appellee (or eight an attorney fee)

Settlements of the estate accounts of, Charles Lewis decd. Peter Oshen, and William Dunlap decd, Joel S. Graves and Richard Stegler, Jacob Spader and John Hyzer & Jacob Hyzer decd. were returned, and examined by the Court, and were ordered to be Recorded.

Settlements of the Guaranties accounts of Michael Brock for Ephraim Moody, Jacob Shanks of Michael Mellow, Henry Carver for Jacob Mellow & Christian Carver of Ephraim Moody were returned and examined by the Court & ordered to be Recorded.

A sale bill of the estate of John Peery decd. was returned & ordered to be Recorded.

On the Motion of Samuel Coote, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$200. and made oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining Letters of administration on the estate of Sarah Johnson in due form, and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher, George Blake & Thomas Clarke, being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Sarah Johnson decd. and make report to the Court.

A writing purporting to be the last will, and Testament of, Barbara Gould decd. was presented in Court, and proved by the oaths of Daniel Whitman and Samuel B. Coffman two Witnesses thereto & ordered to be Recorded. (whereupon the said woman in the said Will from under his hand & seal relinquishes his right to qualify as such,) and on the Motion of John

A. Moyers who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$1200. and made oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining Letters of administration on the estate of the said Barbara Gould decd. in due form, with her said Will annexed, and it is ordered that Joseph

② Coffman, Peter Paul, Gabriel Steadwood and John Perry, or any 2 of them being first sworn, do appraise the estate of said Margaret Good and make report to the Court.

Ordered that the Rev. Overseer of the poor send, John a free Negro
to Daniel Smith to learn the art of a farmer, as the Law directs.
(27) The said boy being 9 years old the 30 of May last) who is to
receive for free service per An-

x Peter Smith Sailor of this County procures in Court. and account
 cap. & amounting to \$11.50¹/₂ cents. which was examined and allowed
 do. by the Court. and ordered to be Certified

George Clarke on process in Court, and a account for sundry
the same are attending on ^{Sundry prisoners &c.} ~~himself~~ ~~for~~ ~~and~~ ~~attorneys~~. Confirmed
on the faith of this County, which was examined, and allowed by
the Court and ordered to be Certified.

Coffman ~~the~~ ^{is} Bridges, the Defendant was brought into Court upon an execution, who delivered up a Schedule of his estate and took the oath of an ^{the Deft being present & consenting} ~~un~~ ^{thru} insolvent debtor, and it is ordered that the said Defendant be discharged, provided he is not in custody for any Cause.

On the Motion Jacob Bear, it is ordered that, Williams & Thompson be appointed a Commission to examine state & sell to the accounts of ^{the said Jacob Bear as agent of Joseph} ~~the said Jacob Bear~~ ^{Joseph} Lebert dec'd, ~~within the~~ ^{within} ~~said~~ ^{said} Jacob Bear, and make report thereof to the Court.

A Writing purporting to be the Last will and Testament of Jacob Blofer dec^d was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of Joseph Starbarger and Daniel Blofer two witnesses thereto, and a translation of the said will being also presented Court, and proved by the oath of Joseph Furrer the said Translation is ordered to be Recorded, and as the Motion of Henry Blofer, the executor named in the said will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$22,000. and made oath thereto as the Law directs, a Certificate is granted him for obtaining a probate thereof in due form and it is ordered that Joseph Coffman, Daniel Lynn &

John Thomas & Henry Thomas, or any three of them being first sworn as appraisers the estate of the said Jacob Blofres and make report to the Court.

A Writing purporting to be the last will and Testament of Connor Rader and was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of Benjamin Moy and Levi Moy in two Witnesses thereto & Orans to be Received, and on the Motion of Henry Rader the executor named in the said will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100, a certificate is granted him for obtaining approval thereof in due form.

A Deed of emancipation from Elizabeth Rutherford to George a Negro, was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of the Witnesses thereto & Orans to be Received.

Certified to and Set
 A List of the Tithables on the ary River Gap Road, was returned into Court, and was examined by the Court, and it is Orans that the sum of 43 cents be collected from each of the said Tithables agreeably to said List, that being the proportion of each for keeping or repairing the said Road, which is Orans to be Certified to the State the maintenance.

Carmen
 On the Motion Joseph & John ^{Carmen} execs of Michael Ermon and it is Orans that Isaac Sellars be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of s^r Michael and make report to the Court.

CP
 On the Motion of John Carmen executor of Mary Boon and it is Orans that Isaac Sellars be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of the said Boon and make report to the Court.

CP
 On the Motion of Saml M. Lewis admin of Richard Austin and it is Orans that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Austin and make report to the Court.

C
 Saml Cook vs J. Irwin on appeal docketed & continued.

On the Motion George Detmold son of Elizabeth Detmold and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine estate and settle the estate accounts of the said E. Detmold and make report to the Court

On the Motion of John Roller son of George Sheffer and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine estate and settle the estate accounts of said George Sheffer and make report to the Court

On the Motion of May Raden, and for satisfactory evidence appearing to the Court, it is ordered to be Certified to the Pension Agency at Richmond, that Conrad Raden, who was a Revolutionary Pensioner of the United States died on the 2nd day of July 1834 and that the said May is his Widow

Henry J. Gambell Clerk of this Court, presents an account for attending Call^d Courts, and for examining Commissioners books for the year 1834, which accounts were examined and allowed by the Court and ordered to be Certified

Ordered that the Sheriff summon all the acting Magistrates in this County, to appear here at November Court Next for the purpose of ^{considering} ~~examining~~ the report of the Commissioner appointed to view and mark out the ~~way for a~~ way for a road, from the town of ^{in the County of Rockingham} Harrisburg, to the town of Charlottesville in the County of Albemarle, and for the purpose of giving their assent to the opening the said Road through the said County of Rockingham

Reigle & Currough & on a Notice as a Duty bond, Notice from By. and execution awarded

Graham & Laman on a Notice as a Duty bond Notice from By. and execution awarded

Register of Wills by Henry & George Byrd for Newson, was presented in Court and compared with them, and found duly made. Copies thereof are ordered to be furnished them as the Law directs

On the Motion of Peter Hayman adm. it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine estate and

Let the State a account of the said Stagers and make report thereof to the Court

CP. + Ordered that Thomas H. Miller be appointed a School Commissioner in this county, in the room of Jacob Miller resigned —

CP Ordered that Henry J. Gambell be appointed a Commissioner to procure a stove for the use of the Court house, of the same size and form of the one now in use in the Court house, and cause the same fitted with the necessary pipes and set up therein before the next Court, and it is further ordered that the said Gambell pay the expenses thereof out of any money in his hands as the County agent, and make report thereof to the Court

CP + ordered to be read Peter Hecht's report, returned into Court an account of the expenses of holding, attending on, & conducting Confessions in the jail of this County, which account was ~~also~~ examined and allowed by the Court, and a copy thereof ordered to be certified to the Auditor of Public Accounts

CP + Ordered that John H. Mason and Allen C. Bryan be appointed Commissioners for the purpose of examining into the state and condition of John Smith, Jacob Spitzer and Rebecca Berry, Jurators now confined in the jail of this County, and ~~report~~ ^{report} thereon and that they report the result of such examinations to our November Court Next.

CP This Court doth certify that Elias Terry, who wishes to obtain admission to practice as an attorney, in the Courts of this Commonwealth, hath resided in this County for the last preceding twelve months; that he is a person of honest intentions, and upwards of twenty one years of age.

CP + ordered to be read Daniel Mathew Sheriff of this County, presents in Court an account for services and attending on Call Court held on B. Cowan & Robert Day, which was examined and allowed by the Court and ordered to be certified

CP + ordered to be read James T. Lyman Constable returned into Court an account for expenses in arresting, and ~~detaining~~ ^{detaining} of James Deane & Charles with felony, and summarizing salary with fees

for his trial, where account was examined and allowed and
 Orans to be Certified

✓ Orans of the poor & O Shanks on Regy. Certified by Court

✓ The Miller & Jacob Detention on attached Docket & Certified

culp ✓ William L. Leavens Deputy Sheriff of Daniel Mathews Sheriff of
 Rockingham Returns list of enrolment in the Revenue tax for 1833.
 which was examined and allowed by the Court and Orans to be
 Certified he having made oath thereof as the Law directs

culp ✓ Edward St. Smith Deputy for Daniel Mathews Sheriff. Returns a
 list of delinquents in the Revenue tax for 1833. which was examined
 and allowed by the Court. and Orans to be Certified, he having
 made oath thereof as the Law directs

It is ordered that the Court do adjourn until the 2^d Monday
 in November next

Leavens

Virginia to wit,

At a Court held for the County of Rockingham on
 the third Monday, being the 17th day of November 1834.

Present

Reuben P. Fletcher Jacob Rush, Reuben Mead
 & Augustus Waterman J. & Justice

A list of Conveyances and other Writings admitted to Record in the
 Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham, from the 1st to the
 31st of October 1834. both days inclusive, was Returned into Court by
 the Clerk thereof, and being examined by the Court, is ordered to
 be entered on the Minutes, and a copy thereof be posted at the
 door of the Court house of said County, which is in the words following.

Ad do for Sarah Benjamin Smith & to James Tyler.

Ad do for P. Properly Will. Bridges to L. M. Gambell in trust for Coffman & Co.

- not found Address for Land Jacob Hoover to Samuel Klein
- do Address for Land same to George Klein
- do Address for Land George Hoogler to Adam Wise Jr.
- do Address for Land Jacob Hysaners to Peter Henselberg
- do Address for Land Daniel Brown to same
- found Address for Land Henry Loider to George Santy
- found Address for Land Benjamin May to James May
- not found Address for Land Jonathan Rust to Alexander N. Givens
- do Address for Land William Durlap to Peter Swoope
- Address for P. Property Russell Ryth to Henry Booz in trust for Joe Shera
- not found Address for Land Michael Fegab to Peter Sprunkel
- do Address for Land Hugh Dever to John Whetmore
- do Address for Land Isaac Long to Absalom Wright
- found Address for Land Edwin Salvage to St. J. Gambill in trust for James Wall R.
- not found Address for Land Peter Myant to Frederick Myant
- do Address for Land John Myant to same
- do Address for Land Willis Powell to Stephen Shepley
- found Address for Land L. Bougher to Garret Powell
- not found Address for Land Peter Myant to John Myant
- do Address for Land Moses Sellar to Joseph Mayo
- do Address for Land Adam Bloce to George Price
- found Address Nelson Henry J. Gambill to William Bryan
- found Address for Land George Beaver to John Cowan
- not found Address for Land Barna Inpall to Joseph Frank
- do Address for Land George Miller to John Good
- found Address for Land John Rice to John T. Gordon
- not found Address for Land A. Materniansen to William Durlap
- found Address for Land John Staro to Jacob Perce
- not found Address for Land James Rurison to John Coffman
- do Address for Land Benoit Davis to John Emory
- do Address for Land John Mohler to Abraham Mohler

- found ✓ Adm for Lams Mary Brown to Joseph Seamus
- ✓ Adm for Lams Property for Lammey to Lams Hall in trust for Elizabeth Young
- found Adm for Lams P. C. W. Carthen to D. Steele in trust for Anne Frobough
- ✓ Adm for Lams to Beely to J. W. P. Keatty in trust for Susan Keatty
- found Adm for Lams George Long P. to Jacob Fry
- not found Adm for Lams St. Harnsbarger exec to George Tyson
- ✓ Adm for P. Property Charles Young Jr. to Charles Young Jr.
- not found Adm for Lams O. P. Byers P. to R. P. Fletcher in trust for Abraham Smith
- found Adm for Lams M. Ewins to Henry J. Gambill in trust for Nathan Stofen
- not found Adm for Lams Joseph Thornelaw to Robert Gray
- ✓ Adm for P. Property from Joseph Shue to Lewis Byers in trust for Jacob Miller

C On the Motion of Michael Lerum admin of Daniel Brookhart ad. et
 ex. and that Nathan Moffett be appointed a commissioner to exam-
 ine and settle the estate accounts of said Daniel Brookhart and make
 report to the Court

C At Writing purporting to the last will and Testament of Peter Swoope
 deced. was presented in Court and promulgated by the oath of Henry J. Gambill
 and Lillies M. Gambill two witnesses thereto & ordered to be received and
 on the Motion of Peter Swoope for one of the executors named in the said
 will who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$10,000 and made
 oath thereto as the Law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining a
 probate thereof in due form (the other executor named in said will
 having from under his hand & seal refused to act) and it is ordered
 that John Sealwood, Abraham Young, Abraham Sealwood & Saml
 Chinn, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate
 of the said Peter Swoope and make report thereof to the Court

C On the Motion of Abraham & Peter Brannan admin of Malcha Brannan
 ad. et. it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner
 to examine and settle the estate accounts of said Malcha Brannan
 deced. and make report to the Court

Moore
 X Register of Feby, and Daniel Hurley, per Regon. was returned into
 Court and being compared with the said Regon. and found duly made
 copies thereof, is ordered to be filed in the manner directed
 by Law.

On the Motion of Joseph Bellknap, who enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$1000. and made oath thereto, as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Joseph Wright deceased in due form, (Mary Wright the widow having by writing from under her hand & seal, refers to act) and it is ordered that Daniel Deady, Leonard Long, Jacob Miller & William Cannon, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of said Wright & do and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Jacob Rust, who enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$3000. and made oath thereto, as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Samuel Armentrout deceased in due form, (Sophia Armentrout Widow of the said Samuel, by writing from under her hand & seal, refers to act), and it is ordered that George Kizer, Jacob Weaver, John Gaunt and John Rush Jr. or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of the said Armentrout & make report to the Court

C Countess v. N. Harrison, ^{Defendant appears in Court & confesses a Judgment} ~~decreed~~ ^{confessed} for Costs.

C Meller v. N. Harrison, ^{by default} ^{by Defendant} Judgment confessed for \$5 damages & Costs

Samuel Sheeblit (formerly), John Sheets, Abraham Beery, Samuel Harsbarger, John Cooper, Peter Swoope, John ^{Harrison} ~~Harrison~~, George Martz, Matthew Miller, Joseph Stefferson, John Miller, Elijah Clarke, Henry Blosser, Christian Sits, William Rogers, Peter Brannaman, James Stoptien, & John F. Effinger who means this charge and retired from the bar to conduct of their presentments, and after some time returns into Court, and declares that they had no presentments to make, whereupon the said Grant & Fry was discharged

Smith - Mr. Nevers for arrears of the plea ^{plea} ~~plea~~ ^{of} ~~of~~ ^{for} ~~for~~ ^{costs} ~~costs~~
 same - A. Smith same
 same - M. Mahan same

Court - Christman the Deft appears in Court and Confers a fine for the costs

A settlement of the estate accounts of John Sellan and w^{ch} returns and examined by the Court, and ordered to be recorded

Ordered that Jacob Shanks be appointed Guardian of Eros & Leah Bunkholer infant Children (under 14 years) of Peter Bunkholer and who enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$500. Conditions as the law directs.

John & Brannan McEetards N. A. Gentlemen of the Court and Court
 Present

Peckey Harrison, George Clarke, Thane Thomas

The Court proceeded to recommend proper and fit persons to act as Sheriff of this County for the ensuing year, and the names of the Justices present being poll^d in the manner directed by law, they unanimously voted for Joseph Leaven, Daniel Stinton & Richard P.

C^o & Fletcher, whereas it is ordered that the said Joseph Leaven, Daniel Stinton & Richard P. Fletcher be recommended to the Court to act as Sheriff of this County for the ensuing year.

Two settlements of the estate accounts of Sabastian Marty and were returned, into Court, and for reasons appearing to the Court it is ordered that the said settlements lay over until the next Court

Burying as & Hoslatter upon a Attachment, Deft call^d Doct^r and continue until to Morrow.

Ordered that the Sheriff summon all the acting Magistrates in this County to appear here at February Court Next for the purpose of considering the report made by the Commissioners of appraisals by an order of this Court and of the County Court of Albemarle &

Changes to New. and marks out the way for a road from the town of Harrisburg in the County of Richmond to the town of Charlottesville in the said County of Albemarle, and also for the purpose of giving them a report to the opening said Road, - and it is further. Or and that Joseph Maury, Daniel Stanton & Jacob Starbarger (any two of whom may act/be appointed Commissioners to ascertain, as near as they can the probable cost of opening that part of the said Road as passes through this County, and make a report to February Court Next.

17 Cornwall & O'Roark N. G. & Free and continued

Cornwall & Mary New Summons to Feby. Court Next

18 Overman Poor & Shanks upon a recogn. continued by court

Miller & Detmold dis. upon no appearance

New Shamrock Company & Harper continued

Dever P. & Newman P. continued

Receivers

Stute & McMaths continue for award

Young & Pochon & Papes . . . continued by court

Showalter Infant & Beggles continue for award

Smiths exec. & Hester P. 2 3 etc. continue for award

Parties

Or and that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow Morning at 10 o'clock

Peachey Harrison

Tuesday the 18th November 1834.
Present

115

Peachey Harrison, Reuben Moore, Joseph Chinn
and George Clarke E. G. Foster.

Worn & Streeted disimp^d ag^d

Moffell, Bore & disimp^d ag^d

Campbell & Bnays disimp^d ag^d

Kenney & Hall & the ~~the~~ second report of the Verger ^{on} the alteration
of the road, on the petition of ~~the~~ ^{said Mr. Kenney} ~~the~~ returned into Court, and the
Court being satisfied with the alteration ^{so} proposed to be made, and
all objections thereto being withdrawn the said alteration is ordered to be
established agreeable to the ~~and~~ reports of the Verger aforesaid.

Granth & Hall on a presentment of the Grand Jur. by Court
Jurat exp^d for the costs

Granth & Roark same

Bourne & Rader continue by Court

Newman & Meast. The Death of the defendant suggests

Reithfords adm^r & Carthrew continue by Court

same & Roark same

Kings adm^r & Williamson continue

On the Motion of the adm^r of Henry Macdonald it is ordered that
~~George~~ George Clarke be appointed a Commissioner to examine and
settle the estate accounts of said Macdonald and make report to the Court

Peterson & Roark continue

Gilman & St. Gilman disimp^d and Jurat for Defendants Costs
John

Present before Campbell absent Joseph Chinn

On the Motion of John Blair, who entered into bond with security
in the sum of \$200. and made oath that as the law directs a certificate
is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Matthew
Boar and in due form, (Elizabeth Boar the widow of said Matthew
having from under his hand & seal, however refuses to act) and it
is ordered that Jos. Bishop, Edward Reed, John Lee & Eugene Anderson
or any 2 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of said Boar &
make report to the Court

Rutherford adms & Oliver, Jury sworn to try this case to wit
 Abraham Moyes, William Payson, Oscar L. Latham, George Dutton
 James S. Jones, A. S. Gambell, John P. Linn, William Ferry
 Joseph Kelly, Alexander McGilly, Leonard Tutwiler & Richard
 Mansfield. Verdict for the Plff for \$21 with interest from the
 15 Nov. 1834 till paid, and Judgment to be accordingly

Moyes & Mary continued by Court

Tutwiler & Parker Jr continued

Gambell & Mathews adms continued

Whitely & Gordon on a Notice or Rule, or Rule board, Notice and
 execution awarded

G. H. Beaver & Woods on same

P. B. Baw & Byrd on same

G. Sherry & Carr on same

H. Coffman & Hooper & Shields on same

C. B. Bowman adms & Logan on same

C. H. Coffman & Hooper & Erwin on same

By Rutherford & State on same

H. Stair & Garber on same

Mentor & Christman disupd agreed

Graham & Mello continued by Court

Dever & Campbell continued by Court

Thrasher & Scurie, plea waived & Judgment Confirmed for \$54.50
 cents, with interest from 15 Feb'y 1831 till paid, Subject to C^o of \$10
 paid 19 July 1831. and by agreement each party to pay their own costs, except
 in this suit,

Peckering & Looker disupd continued for the Plff, (costs)

C. L. L. & Mansfield continued for the Plaintiff

May & Rader pay sworn to by the Juries to wit, William Payne
Oscar Keravens, George Delaney, James & John, Albert & Gambell, John
Blair, William Ferry, Joseph Kelly, Alexander Mc Gilvy, Leonard Tuleen
Michael Ward & the William Sharpe for Verdict for the Plaintiffs for
\$44 Damages, I Supra accordingly, whereupon by consent the Deft.
agrees to Release all the said Damages, except the sum of \$35.

On the Petition of Robert Gray & Edward St. Smith, to alter a part of
the Keefel-tous Road, ^(which) runs through the lands of your Petitioners, ^{the} ~~the~~
alteration is to ~~be~~ ^{be} ~~be~~ ^{be} the present road near a small log house
on the land of Dorcas Hoffman, and from thence into the Christmas Mills
Road, and running with the same, to the Stage Road near Anna
Blacks Smiths Shop, and thence with a Wagon Road, which runs from
said Anna Shop, to where it enters the said Keefel-tous Road, it is
ordered that Henry Puller, John St. Appian, Barrett & Appian of fact
Moore, or any three of them being first sworn do View the said
proposed alteration, and make report to the Court of the Court as
and as necessary attending the same to the Court

Thompson Esq & Jno Caldwell Esq Officer Swagmunt set and pay well-pleased
Generalization of the Court

Sams	Jno Caldwell	same
McWilliams	Sammels	same
Mahony (for Allibough)	Sammels	same
William Reed	Tidal	same
Parris	Smith	same
St. Rice	Loftus	same
Mr. Rice	Matthews Shiff	same
S. Coffman Esq	Gordon	same
Cooper	Gordon	same
Houston	Matthews Shiff	same
Gambell	Bridges	same
Mr. Rice	Matthews Shiff	same

Anderson (for Hyer) v Joseph P. Offens Indignat set aside, payment
pleads. Generalized & Offens & Confined

W. H. Coffman & Co. v Carney same

Roberts & Finley (for Coffman & Co.) v Carney same

Nancy Gain orphan of ^{John} ~~Robert~~ Gain deceased over 14 years of
age came into Court, and made choice of Martin Benckholan
as her Guardian, and it is found that the said Martin
Benckholan be appointed Guardian for John Gain & Lucy &
Sally Gain children of said John under 14 years of age
he having entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$500
as the law directs

Saffley v Ferry Offens Indignat set aside payment pleads. Generalized
& Offens and Confined

Grondoffa Sowers v Barkan same

Peyton v Isaman same

Wrightson v Baker & Co same

C. Wrightson v Ferry same

Johnston v Chrisman same

Houston v Looker & Co same

Boyer adm (for A. H. Coffman) v J. Looker same

Shacklet v Chrisman same

Bloper (for C. Cooper) v Logan Jr same

Heard & Sherran v Ferry & Co same

M. Reed v Stenton same

same v Baker & Co same

Salvage (for M. Rice) v Stenton & Co same

Boogler v Bechler same

Smith (for Seland & Co) v Housh same

Roberts v Heister same

Crawford v Clarke same

Burthorpe v Logan same

Effinger & Lennan, offer Judgment set aside payment plea & ^{for} ~~for~~ replication & issue and continue

Buryan & Stottell, upon an attachment

The sheriff having Return on the attachment served on one horse & the property of the Defendant, who was solemnly called but came not, it is therefore ordered by the Court, that the Plaintiff have Judgment for \$240.00 with the Debt in the attachment mentioned, with interest from the 20th day of September 1834 till paid, and Costs; and it is ordered that the Sheriff make sale of the said attached property according to Law, and pay the money arising from the sale thereof to the Plaintiff in account of the Judgment, and make return thereof to the Court

H. Miller & Jas. Irwin Jury sworn to try the issue to wit John B. Gouth.

Joab Berry, George M. Pefer, George Rader, Thomas Looker, John F.

Gordon, William B. Smith, Joab Moore, John Sturges, Richard

Wingfield, Jonathan Buryan, & Abraham Gordon, who not agreeing in their Verdict was adjourned until to Morrow Morning at 10 o'clock

case of continuance set aside &

Nichols & Rader Jr. plea waives & Judgment confessed for the Debt in the

Declaration mentioned with interest & Costs. saving equity

Kerr (for Hoogler) & M. Rogers. offer Judgment set aside payment plea &

for replication & issue & continue

Leary & Bowen. M. C. set aside. N. G. for replication & issue and

continue

Reuben Moore Comptroller, produces in Court an account for services rendered the Commonwealth in apprehending Elizabeth Coston charged with felony, amounting to \$209.66 which account was examined and allowed by the Court and ordered to be certified to the auditors of public accounts.

Ordered that the Court be adjourned until to Morrow Morning at

10 o'clock

Peckey Harrison

Wednesday the 19th November 1834.

Present

John H. Campbell, George Clarke, Augustus
Waterman & Isaac Thomas E. G. Foster

Bowman & Bryan Office Insured, set aside payment & replication
& issue are continued

Darrow for P. & Simons continues for Defendants

Miso P. for W. Miso / or Pence P. Jury sworn to try the issue to wit:
John Miller, William Searcy, Christian Sager, Henry Shepp, Abraham
Fury, Saml Leggett, Oliver Sterling, Thomas A. Hicks, ^{Thomas Leggett} Saml Dinkels
Danis Fleck, & James West. Verdict for the Plaintiffs for \$413 the debt
in the declaration mentioned with interest from 7 May 1832 till paid
& Insured accordingly

Miller & Inven. The Jury sworn for the trial of this cause on
Yesterday, appeared in Court agreeably to their adjournment.

and selected from the bar to consider of their Verdict and after
some time returned into Court, and declared that they could not
agree, whereupon, ^{by consent} John D. Bout one of the said Jurors was withdrawn
and the rest of the Jurors from rendering their Verdict discharged
and the cause was continued.

Craven & Hartly. Jury sworn to try the issue to wit: John
Miller, William Searcy, Christian Sager, Henry Shepp, Abraham
Fury, Saml Leggett, Oliver Sterling, Thomas A. Hicks, Saml
Dinkels, Danis Fleck & James West & Thomas Simons,
Verdict for the Plaintiff for \$67. Damages with interest from the
19th of ^{August} 1834 till paid & Insured accordingly

Craven for P. & Simons continues Defendant (both)

Paul Adams & Dinkels continues by consent.

Rigglesman & Hobbs continues by consent

Miller & Rigglesman continues by consent

Efferger - Bankholder & plea wants to sign Confess for the Debt in the Declaration mentioned, as per Specially with interest & Costs (serving equity)		
Rutherford & Shue		same
Riferson & Christman		same
Wam & Palmer		same
Shelly & Looker		same
same & M. Stanton		same
same & Moss Stanton		same
Kyger & Parkey		same
Kyger & Bryan		same
Stume & Jennings		same
Clarke & Furry		same
Moore & Byerly		same
Barrack & Shue		same
Rice & Meller		same
J. Melsaw for Mr Pollock Hoof & J. Looker		same
Coffman Hoof for Mr C. B. J. Brains		same
Pollard for same & Mr. Furry		same
Blain & Green		same
Burrows for Mr. Rice & Rogers		same
Burrows for Cowan & Menegor		same
Holinger & Christman		same
Stuart for Cowan & Parkey		same
Christman & Christman		same
Armstrong & Mr. Furry		same
Flood & Mr. Furry		same
Rogers for J. Grimes & McMahon		same
Powell for D. Loftland & Logan		same
Bohn & Mr. Furry		same
Scott for C. Norman & Rogers	Continued	

Coffman & Co. v. Mr. Ferry plea is & is not enough for the debt
in the calendar mentions with interest & Costs (serving copy)

Moore v. Ferry same

Coffman v. Ferry same

High v. Ferry jury sworn to try the issue to wit: George Messers
John Lee, Michael Wero, David Wero, Evert Salavens, James Bridges
Henry Shep, James Irwin, Philip Sinsay, Jacob Sumner, William
Bridges & Amos Lago. Verdict for the plaintiff for \$37.50 and the
debt in the calendar mentions with interest from 10 July 1893 till paid
& Costs

Stow & Gray v. Ranken (continued)

Crow v. Miller & Co. continues by consent

Rice v. Robertson continues for the Defendant (att.)

Thompson & Co. v. Stottenger continues

Phillips & Malloy v. By consent of the parties by this Court
the suit is removed to the Circuit Superior Court of Law and Chancery
for this county to be tried, and by like consent, it is agreed that no
addition to the attorney's fees on either side is to be made in the costs in
consequence of the removal of said suit,

Irwin v. Dinkelschlag sworn to try the issue to wit: George Messers
John Lee, John Smith, Michael Wero, David Wero, Joseph
Kroner, Evert Salavens, Henry Shep, Philip Sinsay, Jacob Sumner.
John D. Moyes & Amos Lago. Verdict for the Plaintiff for
one cent damages and judgment according to law for
no cost costs.

Graven for Davidson v. Ranken (continued)
Present.

Joseph Graven, Abraham Smith, Albert John H. Campbell
Samuel Dinkelschlag a constable in the ~~Deer Creek~~ District, came
into court and resigned the said office whereupon the court
proceeded to the appointment of a constable in said district in the
room of said Dinkelschlag, and the names of the justices present being
called they voted unanimously for Thomas M. Stile, it is therefore

Oramus that the said State be appointed, who appears in Court and enters into bond with security in the penalty of \$2000. and to take the several oaths of office as the Law directs, the Court being of the Opinion that the said State is a man of good character, honesty, probity and good demeanor who is Oramus to be entered of Record.

Mellon adms. a ^{State} Officer In agent set aside payment
of Replication and Issue and Contemner

Oramus that the Court be adjourned until the third Monday in December next.

Peachey Hanson

Virginia to suit

At about half past four the County of Rockingham on the third Monday being the 15th day of December 1834.

Present.

Supr. Oramus, George Clarke Secy of Warrenton P. E. G. Justice
Reuben Almon

Affidavit of conveyance, admitted to Record, in the Clerk's office of the County Court of Rockingham, from the 1st to the 30th day of November 1834, both days (included) was returned into Court by the Clerk thereof, and was examined by the Court, is ordered to be entered on the Minutes, and a copy thereof, ordered to be posted up at the door of the Court house of said County, which is in the words following to wit,

Adms for P. Property M. Bryan to R. P. Fletcher in trust for M. Ewin

Adms for land Thomas McCulloch to Thomas Walters

An agreement between Thomas McCulloch and Thomas Walters

Adms for land James Bridges to Abraham Smith P

Adms for land Benjamin Smith to Margaret Smith

Adms for land May P. Ewin others to Hugh Dew.

Adms for land John Looker to Jacob Bournow in trust for Jno. Looker

Adms for land P. Lewis C. Talcaferrow to G. W. Harper in trust for F. A. Talcaferrow

Adms for land Tobias Beaw to his children

Adms for land same to Pierce Perry -

found
found
not found
do
do
found
found
not found
do

- found Adm for dano John Servants to Mr. Shaw & office and
- found Adm for dano Mary (D) Ashles to Henry Bottom
- not found Adm for dano Philip Buck to Anderson & Partners
- ✓ Adm for P. property P. Funder to D. Stute in trust for Adam Funder & Co
- not found Adm for dano Philip Bull to Philip Spetzer Jr.
- do Adm for dano Philip Spetzer to Abraham Hussup
- found Adm for dano Henry West to Warren Stark
- not found Adm for dano John F. Moorman to James Wall
- found Adm for dano Daniel Whisler to John Stufferman
- not found Adm for dano Edwin Nichols & Co to John Roden Jr.
- do Adm for dano William M. Pollock to William Eyler
- found Adm for dano William Briggs to Simon Gordon
- not found Adm for dano George Salap to Richard Wingfield
- found Adm for dano Richard Wingfield to Adam Howdeshell
- not found Adm for dano same to Lorenzo Brackeffer & Law Co
- do Adm for dano same others to Lorenzo Brackeffer
- found Adm for dano Thomas M. Stute to Jesse S. O. W.
- not found Adm for dano David Fleck to Joseph Leroux
- found Adm of release for dano d. M. Gambill to Jacob Whisner and
- not found Adm for dano Willis Burray to Polly Burray
- ✓ Adm for P. property Peter Gray to D. St. Gambill in trust for J. C. Christmas
- not found Adm for dano Solomon Piskey to John Leep
- found Adm of release from John F. Effinger to James Clarke
- not found Adm for dano William L. Smith to Joseph Chino
- do Adm for dano Abraham Bery to Henry Dauterthorn
- ✓ Adm for P. estate George F. Evering to d. M. Gambill in trust for St. Louis & Co
- Cooks & Savers are up & agreed (to change in place by Dept. here)

An appraisement bill and sale bill of the estate of Peter Swooper
and was returned & ordered to be Recorded

The settlement of the estate accounts of Sebastian Marley and which
were returned at the last Court and continued until this Court by Court
is continued until January Court next

Mary Ann Kepler Orphan of Jacob Kepler and over 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of William Papp as her Guardian, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$400 as the Law directs

Ordnance that William C. Snapp be appointed Guardian of Eliza F. Royer daughter of Philip Royer and under 14 years of age, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$1000 as the Law directs

Margaret Perna Orphan of John Perna (Decd) over 14 years of age came into Court and made choice of Jacob Perna as her Guardian, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100 as the Law directs

Advers of Emancipation from Mary P. Gellman to her Negroes (Putty &c) was presented in Court and proved by the oaths of Joseph Murray & Peter Rogers and was ordered to be Recorded

A Settlement of the estate of Philip Royer and was returned into Court, examined & ordered to be Recorded

A Writing purporting to be the Last will and Testament of Henry Haffman and was presented in Court, and was proved by the oaths of Simon Moore & John Bell two Withneps. thereof and to be Recorded, and on the Motion of Mary Haffman the executor named in the said will, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$800 as the Law directs, a certificate is granted her for obtaining a probate thereof in due form, and it is ordered that Samuel Moffett, Daniel Driver, Isaac Moffett & John Rife, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appear the estate of said Haffman and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Daniel Pickering and Henry Phillips execs of Catharine Denslap decd it is ordered that Richard

P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of ^{sr}. Durlop. and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of Martin Burkholder exam of Elisha Mephist and it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Mephist and also settle the accounts of said Martin Burkholder as Curator of — Mephist the Widow of said Elisha Mephist and make a report thereof to the Court.

On the Motion of Samuel Bliss who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$15.00 and made oath thereto as the Law directs. a certificate is granted him for obtaining Letters of administration of the estate of ~~and~~ Jacob Sharw and in due form, and it is ordered that Martin Miller, John Penne, Emanuel Hamberger & the Hamberger ~~and~~, or any 2 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of said Jacob Sharw and make report to the Court.

On the Motion of Isaac Sellars exam of Henry Perkey and it is ordered that Joseph Maugy be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Perkey and make report thereof to the Court.

A Settlement of the estate accounts of David Broochant and was returned & examined & ordered to be Recorded.

An appraisment bill and sale bill of the estate of Henry Mace and was returned & ordered to be Recorded.

A Settlement of the estate accounts of Henry Mace and was returned into Court examined & ordered to be Recorded.

Thomas Clarke, David Irish & Peter Bohinger, Commissioners appointed to superintend the drawing of a lottery or lottery to raise money to build a bridge ^{for} crop the South Shannock River. Came into Court and returned the said office, which is ordered to be entered of Record.

Copio 82
a. l. 1. 1854

As and that John Gordon be appointed Surveyor of precinct
No 3 on the North Mountain Road in the room of William
Leford. ~~as above~~ John Bowman ass.

Borahen & Shew, the Defendant, was returned in Court by Peter Shew to his special bail, and was by the Plffs attorney prayed in execution, whereupon the said Shew delivered up a schedule of his ~~estate~~ estate, and to took the oath of an insolvent Debtor, and in order to be discharged proved he is not in Custody for any other Cause

On the motion of Peter Bolinger, and he having paid to George H. Chumman \$1.50 cents, it is ordered that a decern be granted him to keep private entertainment in this County until the May Court Next to be held for this County

Abreut Joseph Ceram.

Present for Mr. Miller, Thomas Benton.

Joseph Latham produced in Court a commission where in he is
+ appointed Sheriff of this County, for the ensuing year, whereupon
he entered into 3 several bonds, in the penalty of \$30,000 each, with
solvency (which was considered by the Court good,) who ~~solvency~~
which bonds were severally acknowledged by the parties thereto &
ran to be Recorded

Reuben S. Rogers a constable in the Harrisburg District of
this county, ^{came into Court} and resigned his said office, which is ordered to be
entered of Record whereupon the Court doth unanimously appoint
James West a constable in the said District in the room of
said Rogers; whereupon the said West entered into bond with
security in the penalty of two thousand Dollars, and took the
several oaths of Office as the Law directs, which bond is ordered
to be Recorded, the Court being of Opinion that the said
West is a man of honesty, probity and good connections, who
is ordered to be entered of Record.

On the Motion John Radwgr who made oath thereto, and entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$200. as the Law directs a Certificate is Granted him for obtaining Letters

of administration of the estate of William Shurley dec'd. with his last will annexed in due form, and it is ordered that John Shaw, Daniel Showalter, Daniel Bourman and George Blair, or any 3 of them being first sworn do appraise the estate of said Shurley & make report to the Court

On the Petition of John Knapp, to alter a part of the road called the Middle Road, which ^{runs} from Harrisburg to Newmarket. (as set forth in the said Petition, it is ordered that Peter Blair, Aaron Kerish, Tobias Bacon, & Matthias Merrick, or any three of them being first sworn do view the said alteration, and make report to the Court of the convenience and inconvenience attending the same to the Court

A Writing purporting to be the last will and testament of Jacob Houlterine dec'd. was presented in Court, and was proved by the oath of Tobias R. McLaughy a subscribing Witness thereto, and the said Houlterine is appearing to the Court, that George Mallow also a subscribing Witness to said Will is dead, the hand writing of the said George Mallow, was proved by the oath of Joseph Murphy, whereupon the said Will was ordered to be Received

Ordered that Elizabeth Shanks be appointed Guardian for Jacob, Mary, Deamed & Catharine Shanks infant Childrens under the age of 21, of Martin Shanks dec'd. who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$100. as the law directs

An appraisment bill, and sale bill of the estate of Andrew C. Inver dec'd. was returned & ordered to be Received

Received & Read upon a Notice in a Delin bond, John Jones & friends awarded

same

By Peter & Peter & Co.

By Miller for Starnard) & Peckering & Co.

same

By Paul for Coffman & Co. & Briggs & Co.

same

And that the Avenue of the poor Mrs Mary Jane Mallory 13 year old to Mrs Natura Gregory as the law directs, who is to receive for freedom dues \$20.

On the motion of William C. Miller, an injunction is granted him to stay proceeding on a judgment rendered against him in this Court by Benjamin T. Graham, until the further order of the Court. But the effect of this injunction is to be superseded until the said Miller enters into bond with security in a penalty at least equal to double the amount of said judgment, and files with the Clerk a release of all errors at law.

On the Petition of John Roller Jr and others for a review from the Public Road leading from Harrisburg to Staunton where said Road is to begin at an apple tree in the lane of Robert Graham, there is crossing a corner of Graham's field to said Graham & Tulester's division line, and running with the same, to within a few poles of William McMahons & John Roller's corner, and then bearing to the left on the same, of John Roller and William McMahons, passing said Roller Mill, and to intersect the Swift New Gap Road near Charles Mouth, in said County. It is ordered that Robert Myler, Joseph Miller, John Baker and George Gonyware, or any 3 of them being first sworn as Viewers of the said way, and make report thereof to the Court of the conveniences and inconveniences attending the same.

On the motion of Stephen Roadcap, who entered into bond with security in the penalty of \$10,000, and made oath that as the law directs, a certificate is granted him for obtaining letters of administration on the estate of Isaac Roadcap deceased, in due form, and it is ordered that Andrew Stages Abraham Funkhouser, Leonard Entwistle, & David Wirt or any 3 of them being first sworn as appraisers of the estate

of said Isaac Roadcap decd. and make report to the Court

On the Motion of Abraham Knapp and Effa Branner, administrators of ~~Isaac~~ Branner decd. it is ordered that William L. Thompson be appointed a commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said Branner and make report to the Court

Richard P. Fletcher and James Black. Commissioners of the Revenue for the County for the year 1835. Came into Court, and, with oaths, entered into bond in the penalty of \$1000 each, which bond, was acknowledged by the parties thereto & ordered to be Recorded

Jacob Keedy & Daniel Lowman, Ex Chans

The Cause came on to be heard this 15 day of December 1834, on the bill, in which the Court being satisfied that the order of publication heretofore made in this Cause had been executed according to law, and the rule of the Court, the Plaintiff's bill is therefore taken for confessed. It is therefore assigned, granted and decreed that the injunction awarded the plaintiff be perpetuated, and that the Plaintiff recover of the Defendant his costs expended ~~therein~~ in the prosecuting of this suit

Settlements of the estate accounts of Peter Haysen Jr decd & Jacob Miller, were returned, and examined by the Court, and ordered to be Recorded

Report of the assignment of the Lower Right of Elizabeth Moyes in the land of M. Chas Moyes her late Husband was returned by the commissioners appointed for to lay of the said Lower Right, and the Court having examined the same, is ordered to be Recorded

On the Motion of George Bartles and Margaret Bartles execs of John Bartles decd. it is ordered that Richard P. Fletcher be appointed a Commissioner to examine state and settle the estate accounts of said John Bartles and make report thereof to the Court

Register of George (after Gregory), Isaac & Abraham Lowmberg, for Gregory, ~~was~~ returned into Court, and being compared with the said George, Isaac & Abraham and found duly made.

Copies thereof are ordered to be furnished each of them in the manner directed by Law

Shaellet & Allman & on a Motion on a Delivery bond, 400. Note is given & execution awarded

Quere of the Poor & Hannah Shanks on a writ by Caruth
Continued until the next Court

Jan. Dever & Newman on a writ continued by Caruth

Dever & Shue upon an appeal, docketed, and for reasons appearing to the Court, the same is continued until the next Court

A Settlement of the Estate accounts of John Baxter
Peterson was returned into Court and examined
and ordered to be recorded

Nereida Pop orphan of John Pop dec'd over the year of
X age came into Court, and made choice of Peter Byrt as her
Guardian who entered into bond with security in the penalty of
\$500 as the Law

Ordered that the Court do adjourn until the third Monday
in January next

Gravens